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APIC Bids Farewell to Company Founder and Renowned Philanthropist

The Late Sheikh Omar Abdulfattah Aggad

The life of the late Sheikh Omar Aggad in brief

Born in Jaffa in 1927, Sheikh Omar attended Al Rashidiya
College in Jerusalem. He received a Bachelor’s degree in
Electrical and Mechanical Engineering from the University
of Manchester in the United Kingdom. In July 1995, Birzeit
University awarded Sheikh Omar an honorary doctorate
in economics in recognition of his pioneering role in the
field of general economics as well as his work in institution
building.

He was a Palestinian pioneer with over fifty years of
accomplishments in business and philanthropy.

Sheikh Omar established and managed over forty industrial
and trade ventures in Saudi Arabia, most of which still exist
and function today.

He founded the Aggad Investment Company (AICO) in
Saudi Arabia in 1975.

In 1982, he led a group of investors to purchase 25%
of Smith Barney Bank in the United States of America and
served on its board of directors.

He was the founder and former chairman of APIC, which he
established in 1994 to encourage investment in Palestine
and create new jobs following the Oslo Accords and the
establishment of the Palestinian National Authority.

He was a founding partner and board member of
InvestCorp Bank in Bahrain and the Saudi British Bank in
Saudi Arabia.

Sheikh  Omar supported numerous projects and
institutions in Palestine, and was a pioneer in his support
of Birzeit University. In 1984, he funded the construction of
the Faculty of Engineering, which is named after him. He
also played a prominent role at the Institute of Palestine
Studies, the Welfare Association, the Palestinian Students’
Fund and was a member of the Palestinian National Council
from its establishment.

The Wall Street Journal noted that“Aggad is considered one

”

of Saudi Arabia’s savviest and most professional managers.

British writer Michael Fields called Aggad “bold and
impulsive, an intuitive decision-taker with a huge head for
detail”

A photo of the late Sheikh Omar Aggad with Mr. Tarek
Omar Aggad, chairman and CEO of APIC, during their
visit to Palestine in 1994 to establish APIC.

May Your Soul Rest In Peace Among The Glories Of Heaven, Sheikh Omar
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Years of Excellence

The Arab Palestinian Investment
Company(APIC)hasseenremarkable
growth and has successfully built its
position in Palestine and beyond
through effective administrative
and financial systems, as well as
constant investment in human
resources.

APIC’s work mechanisms, which are
based on accumulated experiences
and a thorough understanding of
markets and economic realities,
have  consistently  generated
significant financial revenue and
delivered substantial value for
APIC, its subsidiaries, shareholders
and the communities in which it
operates.
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Arab Palestinian Investment Company - APIC

Palestine

6™ Floor, PADICO House Building, Al-Masyoun,

Ramallah

P.O. Box 2396, Ramallah, Palestine
Tel: +970 2 297 7040

Fax: +970 2 297 7044

Jordan

> Contact Information

Office #301, 3" Floor, Building #145, Mecca

Street, Amman

P.O. Box 941489, Amman 11194 Jordan
Tel.: +962 6 556 2910

Fax: +962 6 556 2915

apic@apic.com.jo

-
F Saudi Arabia

Subsidiaries

Siniora Food Industries Company

www.siniorafood.com

Palestine

P.O. Box 132, Bethany, Jerusalem
Tel: +970 2 279 6804
Fax: +970 2 279 9088

E-mail: akarmi@siniorafood.com
Jordan

King Abdullah Il Industrial Estate, Sahab
P.O.Box 191, Amman 11512 Jordan

Tel: +962 6 402 3772

Fax: +962 6 402 3773

E-mail: info@siniorafood.com

Saudi Arabia

Alsulai, Shabaniah Street, Riyadh
P.O. Box 2256, Riyadh 11451
Tel: +966 11 244 8424

Fax: +966 11 244 2181
United Arab Emirates

P.O. Box 413025, Dubai, Business Bay
Towers St., Clover Bay Tower, office # 1908
Tel: +971 4 553 8529

Fax: +971 4 553 8520

Diamond Meat Processing

Umm Ramol - Rashidyah, Behind Dubai

National Aluminum and Profiles Company

WWW.Napco.ps

Headquarters- Nablus

Beit Iba, Qusin Junction, Nablus
P.O. Box 178, Nablus, Palestine
Tel: +9709 2347222

Fax: +970 92347616

E-mail: info@napco.com.ps

Ramallah Office

Al Masyoun, Sahwil Building
Tel: 4970 2 296 5542

Fax: +970 2 296 5543

Email: info@napco.com.ps

Gaza Office
Mobile: +970 569 400 201
Email: infogaza@napco.com.ps

Jordan Branch

Mecca Street, Amman

Tel: +970 569 400 201

Fax: +962 6 552 7524

Email: infojordan@napco.com.ps

Palestine Automobile Company

WWW.pac.ps

P.O.Box 1919, Ramallah, Palestine
Tel: 1800 700 500

Tel: +970 2 241 4363

Fax: +970 2 298 0662

E-mail: info@pac-pal.com

Arab Leasing Company

Unipal General Trading Company

www.unipalgt.com

P.O. Box 2190, Ramallah, Palestine
Tel: +970 2 298 1060

Fax: +970 2 298 1065

E-mail: info@unipalgt.com

Main Distribution Center

P.O. Box 2190, Khalet Alskhol, Old City
Street

Beitunia, Palestine

Tel: +9702 2902288

Fax: +970 2 290 2287

Medical Supplies and Services Company

www.msspal.com

P.O. Box 1909, Ramallah, Palestine
Tel: +970 2 295 9372

Fax: +970 2 295 9375

E-mail: info@msspal.com

Gaza Branch

Ansar, Midhat Al-Wheidi Street, Abu Ouf
Building Gaza, Palestine

Tel: +970 8 282 5685

Fax: +970 8 282 7732

Arab Palestinian Shopping Centers Company

www.bravo.ps

P.O. Box 4185, Al Bireh, Palestine
Tel: 4970 2 242 8581

Fax: +970 2 242 8582

E-mail: info@bravo.ps

Duty Free

St. # 18/A, Building # 1
P.O.Box 20754, Dubai, UAE
Tel: +971 4 286 0382

Fax: +971 4 286 0384

Al-Ayyam newspaper Street, Industrial Sky Advertising, Public Relations and
Zone, Beitunia, Ramallah, Palestine Event Management Company

P.O. Box 1919, Ramallah, Palestine www.sky.ps

Tel: 49702 298 0026

Fax: +970 2 298 0061
E-mail: info@pac-pal.com

P.O.Box 4159, Al-Bireh, Palestine
Tel: +970 2 298 6878
Fax: +970 2 298 6879

Email: infodmp@siniorafood.com
E-mail: info@sky-adv.com

Follow us % n ’ ° m

www.apic.ps

APIC
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> Financial Highlights 2017
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> Chairman’s Statement

Dear Shareholders,

The year 2017 saw milestones on many levels; APIC group achieved significant growth despite the
challenges facing Palestine and the region as a whole. Net profit after tax grew by 46% year on
year and amounted to USD 17.46 million in 2017, while net profit attributed to APIC's shareholders
amounted to USD 11.93 million, marking 45% growth over 2016. Total revenue grew by 13% year
on year and amounted to USD 684 million in 2017. Moreover, earnings per share attributed to
APIC shareholders grew by 36% year on year and amounted to 17 cents per share in 2017.1n 2017,
APIC increased its paid-up capital to USD 70 million by distributing four million free shares to its
shareholders and USD 3.96 million in cash dividends. Accordingly, total dividends amounted to
USD 7.96 million, a payout of 12.06% of APIC’s paid-up capital.

APIC's significant results during the past few years, since its listing on Palestine Exchange (PEX) in
2014 in particular, have had a positive impact on its market capitalization, which has risen gradually
from USD 64 million to reach USD 138.6 million at the end of 2017, a growth of 116% over its 2014
closing (year of listing on PEX).

Although APIC subsidiaries faced many challenges in 2017, they were able to achieve notable
accomplishments. Siniora subsidiary Diamond Meat Processing Company (Al Masa), which is
based in Dubai, United Arab Emirates, has been accredited by the Saudi Food and Drug Authority
to export its meat products to Saudi Arabia. Siniora factories in Jordan and Palestine maintained
the highly-ranked international food safety certificate, the Food Safety System Certificate 22000,
which represents the adoption of the highest food security standards worldwide and is recognized
by key international organizations including the European Food and Beverage Association, the
American Manufacturing Association and the Global Food Safety Initiative. In line with its regional
expansion strategy, Siniora purchased a 3,500-square-meter warehousing facility in Riyadh, Saudi
Arabia, at a total cost of USD 2 million, a move that is in line with Siniora’s future growth in the
region, with a focus on Gulf markets. The company also purchased an 11,590-square-meter plot
of land in the Sahab Industrial Estate in Amman, Jordan, at a total cost of USD 1.55 million, as a
preparatory step towards further expanding its plant in the country.

In line with the global trends that call for the use of renewable energy and environmentally-friendly
natural sources, our companies have initiated a full program of installing solar photovoltaic panels
to achieve the ultimate goal of energy independence.

Annual Report 2017

Palestine Automobile Company officially inaugurated its new headquarters in Ramallah, Palestine,
at a cost of USD 4 million. The sizeable investment includes a state-of-the-art service center, a
large spare parts division and a new body paint workshop. The center will be the base for the
future growth of Hyundai in Palestine, and will offer customers the ideal conditions to service their
vehicles, including those that run on hybrid and electric technologies.

Medical Supplies and Services Company (MSS) installed the first Hitachi open MRI device in
Palestine, one of the world’s finest high-performance imaging devices. MSS also obtained new
and exclusive distribution rights from international companies GSK Consumer Healthcare, GSK
Oral Care, Hologic and Immucor to market and sell their lines of medical, healthcare and laboratory
products in Palestine. Moreover, and in line with the significant expansion of its business and
portfolio, the company upgraded and restructured its main warehouse facility, bringing it up to
the highest international standards.

APIChas maintainedits effective corporate social responsibility rolein the communities withinwhich
it operates through continuous investment in the education and health sectors, entrepreneurial
projects and youth as well as through its support of social, charitable, humanitarian and cultural
institutions. APIC has also continued to forge medium and long-term strategic partnerships with
institutions that play an active role in their society. In 2017, a total of USD 1.2 million was invested
in corporate social responsibility by APIC and its group of subsidiaries, representing 7% of the
company’s net profit.

Finally, and on behalf of all my colleagues on the APIC Board of Directors and myself, | convey my
gratitude to you, our shareholders, for your trust and continued support of this company. | also
thank the group’s more than 1,650 employees for their hard work.

My Father Sheikh Omar Aggad, founder of APIC, who passed away in January 2018, would have
been very proud that today APIC employs so many hard-working, dedicated people who have
spearheaded all these great achievements and results.

Kindest regards,
Tarek Omar Aggad

APIC
Uyl



> Board of Directors

APIC’s Board of Directors as at December 31, 2017 are: Board of Directors Committees

; .................. Mr‘ Nashat Masri . .
Study investment projects,

take investment decisions
and inform the board of

Investment

Dr. Mazen Hassounah i

Committee : Responsibility

? ................. Dr' Durgham Maree ................................ directors on the investment
decisions and activities of the
T Mr. Tarek Shakaa : company

58

°U

< O

85 Mr.Tarek Omar Aggad Mr. Khaled Osaily Dr.Durgham Maree Mr.Tarek Shakaa

Chairman Vice Chairman Member - Representing Member - Representing
Palestine Investment Fund Al-Said LTD Review and discuss the

internal audit reports and
audit strategies prepared by
: : the internal audit manager
S Mr. Ali Aggad regularly, as well as review

Audit : H
Committee """"""""" Mr. Nashat Masri Responsibility

the external auditor’s reports

Mr. Bassam Aburdene .

Mr. Bassam Aburdene Mr. Fuad Kattan Mr.Tareq Abbas Dr.Mazen Hassounah Remuneration - . .

Member - Representing Committee Jr Mr. Khaled Osaily : Responsibility Determine  salaries  and
he Al-Huda Holdi Member Member Member : : bonuses of the CEO and CFO
the Al-Huda Holding brverssnrasrssnrons Mr. Fuad Kattan

Company
Mr. Ali Aggad Mr. Nashat Mastri
Member Member
10 Annual Report 2017 APIQ
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> About APIC Total Revenues 2013-2017
(USD Million)

Milestones

«  Public shareholding listed and traded on Palestine Exchange (PEX: APIC)

«  Paid-up capital of USD 70 million

683.7

(USD Million)

. Total revenues in 2017 amounted to USD 683.7 million Growth

1650 employees in Palestine, Jordan, Saudi Arabia and the United

Arab Emirates 607.4

USD Million)
E Listed its shares on the Palestine Exchange (PEX) on March 2, 2014 (PEX: APIC) 5 3 6 2
8 «  Established Arab Leasing Company, Palestine (USD Million) 5 2 3 6 — -
(USD Million)
)
o Transformed into a public shareholding company 444 6 —
o aEE——

(USD Million)

«  Established Arab Palestinian Shopping Centers Company, Palestine
Acquired Sky Advertising, Public Relations and Event Management Milestones

About APIC

2000

Company, Palestine

Acquired Unipal General Trading Company, Palestine

Acquired Palestine Automobile Company, Palestine

«  Acquired Medical Supplies and Services Company, Palestine

«  Acquired Siniora Food Industries Company, Palestine and Jordan

Registered in Palestine as a foreign private shareholding company

« Acquired National Aluminum and Profiles Company, Palestine

Business
Inauguration

- Established and registered in BVI as a private investment holding 201 3 201 4 201 5 201 6 201 7

company with a capital of USD 70 million

12 Annual Report 2017
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Establishment

The Arab Palestinian Investment Company (APIC) was founded by a number of Arab businessmen for the pur-
pose of channeling funds and investments to Palestine, paving the way to greater development and creating
new jobs in the country.

The company was established and registered on September 20, 1994, in the British Virgin Islands (BVI registra-
tion number 128626). On May 8, 1996, APIC was registered with the Ministry of National Economy in Palestine as
a foreign private shareholding company (registration number 563600634).

APIC was transformed into a foreign public shareholding company on December 23, 2013 (registration number
562801563). On March 2, 2014, APIC listed its shares on the Palestine Exchange (PEX: APIC).

The company’s authorized capital is USD 70 million divided into 70 million shares (USD 1.00 per share); while its
paid-up capital is USD 70 million as of December 31, 2017.

Vision
To provide superior products and services of quality and value, leaving a positive and lasting impact on the mar-

ket. As a result, consumers will reward our capital investments with market command, allowing our employees,
our investors and the communities in which we work to prosper.

Mission
To achieve business and financial success by investing in market-leading companies, thereby elevating the com-
munity through resources, talent and economic development through:

« The provision of superior quality products and services.

« The employment of capable and experienced personnel, ensuring that they are equipped with opportunities
for growth and improvement.

« The continuous application of efficient work systems to all aspects of the business cycle.
- The maintenance of a solid financial base that drives further growth.

« Partnering with key stakeholders in the region to effect real change in the Palestinian community.

Objectives and Activities

As an investment holding company, APIC’s investments are diverse, spanning across the manufacturing, trade,
distribution and service sectors, with a presence in Palestine, Jordan, Saudi Arabia and the United Arab Emir-
ates through its nine subsidiaries, which include National Aluminum and Profiles Company (NAPCO); Siniora
Food Industries Company; Unipal General Trading Company; Palestine Automobile Company; Medical Supplies
and Services Company; Arab Palestinian Shopping Centers (BRAVO); Sky Advertising, Public Relations and Event
Management Company; Arab Leasing Company; and the Arab Palestinian Storage and Cooling Company.

Subsidiaries of APIC offer a wide array of products and services through distribution rights agreements with
multinational companies that include Philip Morris, Procter & Gamble, Kellogg's, XL Energy Drink, Ferrero, Hyun-
dai, Chrysler, Dodge, Jeep, Alfa Romeo, Fiat, Fiat Professional, Abbott, B. Braun, Eli Lilly, GlaxoSmithKline, Sanofi
Aventis, Nivea, GE Healthcare among many others.

APIC is also one of the founding shareholders of Palestine Power Generation Company and has a stake in Bank
of Palestine and Palestine Private Power Company.

14 Annual Report 2017

Corporate Culture

Building an internal culture that motivates and rewards performance and integrity in a complex business en-
vironment demands high governance standards. APIC's commitment to a culture of integrity begins with an
independent and experienced board of directors and a carefully selected management team with a mandate
to continuously bring out the best in its employees. With team spirit, the company has developed value-driven
policies and procedures to guide everyday interactions and uphold its vision. APIC’s internal culture can be best
described through the following four principles:

Values

APIC’s cultural values rest on the belief that all employees are equally important, differing only in their level of
responsibilities, efficiency and commitment. The company values and rewards those with leadership, self-mo-
tivation and innovation.

Structure

The foundation of APIC is built on its people, and to empower them is a strategic investment in the company.
APIC believes that the motivation for promotion comes from within the individual and should be fostered by
the company’s practices and values. The company’s decision-making structure is one that embraces consult-
ing and sharing, enabling each individual to be fully engaged and acknowledged.

Incentives
While stable employee performances are valued, within APIC, forward thinkers are given additional incentives
and are promoted based on their leadership characteristics and outstanding performances.

People
APIC's cumulative efficiency and knowledge lies within in its people. The company creates a vision by setting
tangible goals, which are fulfilled through harmony and team unity in a suitable working environment.

APIC's corporate values are based upon team spirit and cooperation between different departments and sub-
sidiaries, capitalizing and benefiting from the experiences of all team members. Those values are divided into
five categories:

- The Power of People: Leadership and teamwork

« The Power of Innovation: Creativity, thinking and problem solving
«+ Customer Service: Facilitate and accelerate services

+ Driving Growth

. Safety and Quality

Executive Management
APIC's executive management team as at December 31,2017 are:
Mr. Tarek Omar Aggad Mr. Nader Hawari Mr. Tareq Abbas Mr. Khaled Baradei

Chief Executive Officer VP - Corporate Operations VP - Corporate Affairs Chief Financial Officer
" and Business Development ‘

Mr. Ahmad Judeh { Mr. Murad Khatib i Mrs. Fida Musleh/Azar

Chief Investment Officer Internal Financial Auditor Investor Relations and Corporate
Communication Manager

APIC

/ 15
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Corporate Governance

APIC and its subsidiaries operate within systems of governance that regulate management and operations at
all levels. Members of the board are elected by the company’s general assembly every four years. The board
exercises its mandate based on the company’s constitutional articles, which encompass the organizational
structure and stipulate the powers delegated to the management, including those of the CEO.

For the purpose of creating sustainable governance policies, APIC has a specialized Internal Control Department
with complete operational systems. Written policies and procedures are created for all administrative, financial
and operational departments across APIC subsidiaries. The policies and procedures of each subsidiary are
submitted to the board for approval and application. Additionally, at each board meeting, the APIC internal
financial auditor presents routine updates of the internal audit findings for all subsidiaries.

Independent internal auditing for APIC and its subsidiaries is undertaken by Ernst & Young.

Since its listing, APIC has been committed to the Palestine Exchange’s listing, trading and disclosure regulations.

Legal Advisor

A.F. &R Shehadeh - Law Firm
www.shehadehlaw.com

Ramallah

26 Main Street

P. O. Box 74, Ramallah, Palestine

Tel: 49702296 1111

Fax: +970 2 295 3471

Jerusalem

P. 0. Box 20007, East Jerusalem 9199, Palestine

External Auditor

Deloitte & Touche Middle East - Jordan
www.deloitte.com

190 Zahran Street, Jabal Amman

P. O.Box 248, Amman 11118 Jordan

Tel: +962 6 550 2200

Fax: +962 6 550 2210

16 Annual Report 2017
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> Shareholders

Shareholder Structure Share Performance
By the end of 2017, APIC had 576 shareholders comprising both individuals and institutions of various
nationalities. Shareholders holding 5% and above of the capital represented 50.47%, while the remaining APIC's share performance 2017 2016 % change
shareholders represented 49.53%.
[0)
The following table illustrates the shareholders who directly and indirectly own 5% and above of the company’s Share close as at December 31 (USD) 198 190 4.21%
ital:
caprta Trading volume (shares) 19,535,525 36,385,481 46.31%
Trading value (USD) 36,345,261 55,426,393 -34.43%
Shareholder Ownership % as at December 31, 2017 Number of transactions 2,884 4,556 -36.70%
Tarek Omar Aggad and related parties Number of trading days 227 231 -1.73%
Palestine Investment Fund and related parties Number of shareholders 576 542 6.27%
Violette lbrahim Said Baransi Free float percentage as at December 31 45.05% 52.72% -14.55%
Market capitalization as at December 31 (USD) 138,600,000 125,400,000 10.53%

Distribution of ownership between Distribution of shareholder ownership by
individual and institutional shareholders nationality at the end of 2017

at the end of 2017
1.97 1.98

Share Performance (USD) - 2017

1.89 1.89 1.90 1.90 1.90

1.86
1.84

wv
4
(7}
i)
o
<
[}
2
I}
<
v

1.77

-\ i
Palestinian 509, ‘ } ‘

Institutional 47%

* Stock price was adjusted by PEX on April 23, 2017, by the stock dividend payout ratio of 6.06%
High: UsD 198 A\ Low: UsD1.62 W Tumnover ratio: 28%

APIC
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Key Ratios (As at December 31, 2017)

Earnings per Share (EPS) 0.17

P/E Ratio 11.65x

P/B Ratio 1.47x

Key Decisions of the General Assembly

In its regular meeting on April 23, 2017, the General Assembly ratified a dividend distribution of 12.06% of the
company'’s paid-up capital, for registered shareholders as at April 20, 2017, as per the following:

+ 6.06% bonus shares amounting to four million shares.

« 6% cash dividend amounting to USD 3,960,000.

20 Annual Report 2017

Communication with Shareholders

APIC maintains constant communication channels with its shareholders by distributing regular news and
updates, periodical investor briefs, financial disclosures and annual reports. APIC communicates directly with its
shareholders by emails, via its website and through social media channels.

Furthermore, APIC launched a specialized Investor Relations section on its website (www.apic.ps) that provides
shareholders and investors with all necessary information including:

e APIC Share: Share data and performance both current and historical, in addition to analysts’ coverage
reports.

«  Financial Data: Periodic financial statements and annual reports.

« Investor Brief: Periodic publications that highlight APIC's share and financial performance, as well as
other major business developments.

« General Assembly: GA information, invitations, meeting minutes and approved dividend distribution.

¢ IR Contact Information

Dividend Policy

There is no written policy dedicated for dividend distribution at APIC. The following table shows dividend
distribution during the past years:

Fiscal General Assembly Numbers of distributed bonus

Year Resolution Date Dividend Type Cash (USD) shares
h USD 3,960,000 shares 4,000,000
2016 April23,2017 ~ Cashand Bonus _ _ : _
Shares (6% of paid-up capital) (6.06% of paid-up capital)
USD 3,000,000 shares 6,000,000
2015 May 18, 2016 Cash and Bonus . . . .
Shares (5% of paid-up capital) (10% of paid-up capital)
. USD 4,500,000
2014 April 29, 2015 Cash i )
(7.5% of paid-up capital)
) shares 9,990,602
2013 April 29,2014 Bonus Shares ] )
(19.98% of paid-up capital)

Board Remuneration

The board remuneration policy stipulates that each board member receives the amount of USD 25,000 as annual
compensation. The total board remuneration in 2017 amounted to USD 250,000.

Executive Management Remuneration

The executive management’s total benefits of the holding company in 2017 amounted to USD 2,013,155 as per
the following:

- Salaries: USD 864,422

« Bonuses: USD 1,148,733

APIQ 21
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Investments

> APIC Investments

Competitive Position

It is difficult to determine the overall competitive position of APIC given the diversity of its investments as well
as the diversity of the sectors and markets in which it operates. However, the quality of its products and services
both locally and regionally through its subsidiaries have led to APIC’s strong competitive position and leading
market share.

Subsidiaries

Ownership %
Company as at December
31,2017

Country of

Registration Country of Operations | Main Activities and Operations

Manufacturing Sector

National Aluminum and Profiles
Company PLC

2.99% ™  Palestine Palestine, Jordan Manufacturing of aluminum and

Manufacturing of cold cuts,

Jordan, Palestine,
. ! uncheon canned meat and frozen

Siniora Food Industries Company PLC | Saudi Arabia, UAE

Trade and Distribution Sector
Palestine Palestine
i Palestine i Palestine

istribution of medical supplies,
i Palestine i Palestine quipment and healthcare

i Arab Palestin
i Company PSC

Services Sector

i Sky Advertising, Public Relations and . . dvertising, public relations and
Palestine Palestine
Event Management PSC vent management

i Palestine i Palestine Shopping

easing of vehicles

i Arab Palestinian Storage and Cool

{ Company PSC i Palestine i Palestine torage and cooling

i (1) This percentage represents APIC's direct ownership of 70.96% in addition to its indirect ownership of 2.03 % through its subsidiary Unipal.
(2) This percentage represents APIC's direct ownership of 61.18% in addition to its indirect ownership of 0.56% through its subsidiary Unipal.

(3) This percentage represents APIC’s direct ownership of 99.11% in addition to its indirect ownership of 0.61% through its subsidiary Unipal.

{ (4) This percentage represents APIC's direct ownership of 31.1% in addition to its indirect ownership of 37.37% through its subsidiary Unipal.
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Aluminum of Palestine

National Aluminum and Profiles Company (NAPCO)

Founded in 1991, and acquired by APIC in 1995, NAPCO is the first and only aluminum profiles manufacturer
in Palestine. Located in the West Bank city of Nablus and originally launched to serve the basic needs of
Palestinian residents, NAPCO's state-of-the-art 28,000-square-meter plant has an annual production capacity
of over 7,000 tons of high quality products that comply with international standards and specifications.
NAPCO’s innovative and enduring product solutions penetrated regional markets, and the company’s profile
systems serve numerous architectural and industrial branches. NAPCO has a subsidiary in Jordan in order
to seize opportunities in the Jordanian market, as well as make the country a foothold for expansion in
neighboring Arab markets.

NAPCO is accredited by both the Palestine Standards Institution and Lloyd’s Register Quality Assurance
Certificate in Occupational Health & Safety (OHSAS 18001:2007) and has also received the International

Quality Coating Certificate (QUALICOAT).

NAPCO is a public shareholding company and has been listed on the Palestine Exchange since November
2011 (PEX: NAPCO)

& 4 The first and only aluminum profiles manufacturer in
Palestine”? 7
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Siniora Food Industries Company

Siniora Food Industries is a market leader in the manufacture and sale of branded Siniora Al-Quds and Unium
processed meat. The company was founded in Jerusalem, Palestine, in 1920, established its factory in Jordan
in 1992, and was acquired by APIC in Palestine and Jordan in 1996. Siniora acquired the Diamond Meat
Processing Company in Dubai in 2016. Siniora Food Industries produces cold cuts and canned luncheon
meat from three state-of-the-art processing plants built using the latest technologies, one located in East
Jerusalem, Palestine, the second located in King Abdullah Il Industrial Estate in Jordan and the third in the
United Arab Emirates.

Siniora’s factory in Jordan also produces various frozen meat products. Siniora factories in Jordan and
Palestine have been awarded the Food Safety System Certificate 22000 (ISO/TS$22002-1), which represents
the adoption of the highest food security standards worldwide and is recognized by key international
organizations including the European Food and Beverage Association, the American Manufacturing
Association and the Global Food Safety Initiative. Since 2014, Siniora factories in Jordan and Palestine
have been maintaining the international certifications for Occupational Health and Safety Management
Systems OHSAS 18001:2007 and Environmental Management Systems 1SO14001:2004. Siniora has also
been awarded the ISO 9001 certifications for quality and food control safety, in addition to the Palestinian
Standard Certificate in Palestine and the Halal Certificate issued by Jordanian Standards.

The company markets its products through mass merchandisers, grocery stores, high-frequency stores and
department stores in Jordan, Palestine, Saudi Arabia and the United Arab Emirates as well as in many other
countries in the Middle East. Siniora also has distribution centers in Saudi Arabia, the United Arab Emirates
and a dedicated export department covering the Gulf and the Levant. Siniora is a public shareholding
company listed on the Amman Stock Exchange (ASE: SNRA) since January 2012.

ALMASA\T[ p— .

& 4 The leader in the region’s meat manufacturing sector?”
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Unipal General Trading Company

Founded in 1994 as a private shareholding company and acquired by APIC in 1998, Unipal General Trading
Company is by far the leading fast-moving consumer goods (FMCG) distributor in Palestine. The company
possesses and services sole distribution rights for major multinationals such as Philip Morris International,
Procter & Gamble, Kellogg’s, Heinz, Ferrero XL Energy Drink, Americana, as well as Siniora and other well-
known international brands. The company’s highly efficient distribution system delivers leading quality
products that fulfill the Palestinian consumer’s needs.

Unipal is able to effectively drive its product portfolio to a leading market position in a short time span due
to its extensive distribution network of over 6,000 retail outlets throughout Palestine. Moreover, Unipal owns
a state-of-the art distribution center with a capacity of 8,100 pallets.
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Palestine Automobile Company
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Palestine Automobile Company e

Founded in 1996 as a private shareholding company, and acquired by APIC in 1998, Palestine Automobile
Company (PAQ) is the sole distributor for the Hyundai Motor Company’s entire line-up of passenger cars,
trucks and vans, in addition to Fiat Chrysler Automobiles, which include the Fiat, Fiat Professional, Alfa
Romeo, Chrysler, Jeep, Dodge and Ram brands.

PAC’s guiding principle is to provide its customers with top-notch services, achieved through its large state-
of-the-art service and parts facilities, staffing them with qualified engineers and technicians in order to
guarantee customer satisfaction and increased sales.

PAC owns and operates four sales showrooms, three service centers and three spare parts warehouses in
major Palestinian cities, along with its network of authorized dealers across Palestine.
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Medical Supplies and Services Company
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Medical Supplies and Services Company

Founded in 1994 as a private shareholding company, and acquired by APIC in 1998, Medical Supplies and
Services Company (MSS) has consistently maintained its position as one of the top Palestinian companies in
its field.

As the most diversified healthcare product supplier in Palestine, it distributes pharmaceuticals, medical
and laboratory equipment, surgical and disposable items, and fast-moving consumer goods (FMCG) to
pharmacies, private hospitals, non-governmental organizations, the Ministry of Health and retail outlets.
MSS is the sole distributor and service provider for major multinationals including GlaxoSmithKline, Sanofi-
Aventis, Merck Sharp & Dohme, Abbott International, GE Healthcare, Eli Lilly, Beiersdorf (Nivea), Janssen,
Abbott Diabetes Care, Hitachi, Nihon Kohden, B. Braun, Abbott Vascular, Abbott Diagnostics and Trisa.
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Arab Palestinian Shopping Centres Company (Bravo)

The Arab Palestinian Shopping Centers Company offers the first modern shopping malls in Palestine: Bravo
Supermarkets. The company has grown to become the nationwide leader in the retail industry, with six Bravo
supermarkets in three major West Bank cities, three of which are in Ramallah and Al-Bireh, two in Nablus,
one of which is the largest retail outlet in Palestine, and one in Hebron. The main Bravo Shopping Centers
in Al-Bireh and Nablus include various restaurants, a children’s indoor play area, retail shops, among other

services.
= é
o .5
“ Ihe Iargest Supermarket chain iI‘I Palestine ’ ’
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Advertising « Public Relations +Events

Sky Advertising Public Relations and Event Management Company

Founded in 1996 as a private shareholding company, and acquired by APIC in 2000, Sky is recognized as a
pioneer in the fields of advertising, public relations and event management in Palestine, offering a full range
of customized promotional services designed to maximize client profiles in competitive markets. Aiming
to enhance the role of its clients in the market, the company employs staff specialized in various essential
creative areas that include graphic design and printing, public relations, event management, promotion,
media, outdoor advertising and digital communications.

4 4 A pioneer in advertising, public relations and event
management 77
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Arab Leasing Company

Established by APIC in 2014 as a private shareholding company, Arab Leasing Company’s (ALC) operations
arein the field of leasing of Hyundai, Jeep, Fiat, Dodge, Chrysler and Alfa Romeo vehicles. ALC aims to expand
its services in the future to include financial leasing of equipment and machines, as well as the development
of innovative solutions in the field of financial leasing. Moreover, ALC seeks to maintain a leading position in
the leasing sector and excellence in customer service.
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4 4 Developing innovative solutions in the field of financial
leasing 77
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Other Investments (As at December 31, 2017)

Company Name Security Type Number of Shares Ownership %

Palestine Private Power Company* Shares 186,364 4.55%
Palestine Power Generation Company Shares 800, 4.00%
Bank of Palestine Shares 5,093,244 2.55%

*Unipal owns the same number of shares in Palestine Private Power Company

Future Objectives

APIC aims to sustain the performance, success and competitive position it has acquired. In addition, APIC seeks to
reinforce its expansion and development policy by targeting new markets and sectors, as well as upgrading the
products and services of its subsidiaries. APIC consistently pursues steady annual growth while maintaining its focus on
its core values and principles.

Annual Report 2017
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Corporate Social Responsibility...An Effective Role
and a Continuous Commitment

& 4 APIC invested 7% of its net profit in 2017 in corporate social

responsibility, amounting to USD 1.2 million 77

Since its establishment, APIC has had an effective social role in the communities within which it operates. APIC's
strategic social responsibility vision lies in its investment in the education and health sectors, entrepreneurial proj-

ects and youth, as well as through its support of social, charitable, humanitarian and cultural institutions.

Over the past few years, APIC's policy has focused on forming medium- and long-term strategic partnerships with
institutions that play an active role in society, assisting them in fulfilling their missions. In 2017, APIC and its group
of subsidiaries invested a total of USD 1.2 million in social responsibility ventures, a total of 7% of the company’s

net profit.

Annual Report 2017

ﬂ SOS CHILDREN'S
i) VILLAGES

SOS Children’s Villages in Palestine

APIC has regularly supported SOS Children’s Villages in Palestine, helping the institution fulfil its humanitarian
mission of providing quality education as well as stable, secure and loving care to children who have lost
parental and community care. In 2016, APIC sponsored a family of eight children in Bethlehem’s SOS Children’s
Villages to cover three consecutive years, through 2018.

Also in 2016, and for three consecutive years, APIC dedicated a fund to the Education for a Better Future
program, which will enable the Palestinian children of the SOS Children’s Villages to receive quality education
at the schools they attend.

APIC's social and humanitarian commitment extends to providing moral support as well. It was in this spirit that
APIC sponsored a fun-filled Ramadan iftar for the children, mothers and administrators of the SOS Children’s
Village in Bethlehem. The evening included recreational activities as well as the distribution of gifts to the
children.

SOS Children’s Villages International works in over 134 countries worldwide, providing loving homes and
families to children who have lost their parents or who face the risk of losing parental care. It also supports
families going through challenging living conditions by providing care, education and health services.

APIC
duyl
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The Society of Inash El Usra

APIC has been assisting the Society of Inash El Usra since 2016, within a strategic support plan that covers the
years 2016 through 2018, to aid the organization in fulfilling its national, social and humanitarian missions.

Moreover, APIC donated a Hyundai H1 car to the Society of Inash El Usra in 2017, for use by the orphanage
house at the society.

Established in Al-Bireh, Palestine, the Society of Inash El Usra is a non-profit developmental and charitable
organization launched by a group of committed Palestinian volunteer women in 1965. The society relies on
its executive committee for volunteer work, in addition to a dedicated team of more than 100 employees to
achieve its national objectives, which include social, humanitarian, cultural and economic efforts to empower
women and facilitate professional access to community development roles and family support. Other objectives
include the preservation of Palestinian cultural heritage from loss, plagiarism or theft, as well as child care in
recognition of the role youth play in forming a better future of Palestine.

44 Annual Report 2017

Star Mountain Rehabilitation Center

APIC has pledged support for a three-year period to Star Mountain Rehabilitation Center, from 2017 through
to 2019, to assist the organization in fulfilling its mission of providing rehabilitation to persons with intellectual
disabilities and to provide them with training and other opportunities needed in order to be active members of
society. APIC’s contribution to organizations that provide skills training to persons with intellectual disabilities
reflects the company’s strong belief in equal opportunities, respect for others and the importance of human
rights.

Also, jobs have been allocated to people with special needs within the group; two persons from Star Mountain
are employed at the manipulation/labeling section at Unipal’s main distribution center.

Star Mountain Rehabilitation Center in Palestine is an organization that contributes to the securing of a dignified
life for persons with intellectual disabilities by providing rehabilitation and training, integration and inclusion as
well as awareness building and community mobilization through love, dignity, justice and equality. The center’s
four programs include an inclusive kindergarten, a school curriculum, vocational training and community work.
Additionally, Star Mountain offers specialized programs for physiotherapy, speech therapy, art and physical
education, music, drama and psycho-social support/counseling for both students and their families. The center
currently supports 190 persons with intellectual disabilities of all ages.

Ll ®
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Give Palestine Association

In 2017, APIC lent its financial support to the Give Palestine Association, dedicating a fund for the organization’s
projects in Gaza.

Give Palestine Association is a non-profit,non-governmental and independent charitable institution. Established
in 2003, and operating in Gaza, Jerusalem and in the marginalized villages in the West Bank, Give Palestine
aims to help, empower and rehabilitate poor and needy Palestinian families and targets children, women,
disadvantaged families and orphans. The association adopts three main programs: the relief program that
distributes food parcels, school bags and stationery, as well as clothes; the economic empowerment program
that installs solar power panels and restores houses, in addition to implementing economic empowerment
projects for young people and needing families; and the cultural program that establishes and maintains
libraries for children, encouraging reading through dedicated campaigns in addition to organizing summer
camps

46 Annual Report 2017
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Dar Al-Tifel Al-Arabi Organization - Jerusalem

In 2017, APIC launched a strategic support partnership with the Dar Al-Tifel Al-Arabi Organization for five years,
running from 2017 through 2021, that will see APIC providing 20 scholarships for distinctive female students
studying at Dar Al Tifel Al-Arabi secondary school in Jerusalem.

Dar Al-Tifel Al-Arabi Organization (DTA) was founded in Jerusalem in 1948 by the late Hind Husseini, one
of the pioneers in philanthropy and voluntary work in Palestine. DTA is a forerunner in community work in
Jerusalem, and its services span various sectors including education, orphan care, heritage and culture. It runs
and supervises Dar Al Tifel Al-Arabi secondary school and the internal hostel for orphan girl students and social
cases. It also manages two cultural centers: the Palestinian Heritage Museum and Dar Isaaf Al-Nashashibi for
Culture, Arts and Literature.

APIC .
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Youth and Education

The Industrial Secondary School - Jerusalem / Arab Orphan Committee

In 2017, APIC launched a strategic support plan for the Industrial Secondary School in Jerusalem. Under the
plan, APIC will provide 25 scholarships to students studying in the vocational fields of auto-mechatronics,
welding, central heating, air conditioning, carpentry and furniture, communications technology, maintenance
of cellular devices, computers and networks and electrical wiring.

The Industrial Secondary School (JISS) was established in Jerusalem in 1965 by the Arab Orphan’s Committee
(AOC). JISS is equipped with comprehensive equipment, tools and apparatuses, which serve the technical and
vocational education and training (TVET) sectors. The vision of AOCand JISS is focused on building a professional,
productive Palestinian society, with equal chances of adequate education and training, to fulfill requirements
of building a strong Palestinian economy. Under this vision, and as a developable sustainable institution, JISS
offers high quality TVET specializations that are responsive to the needs and requirements of the private sector
and labor market, locally and regionally. In addition, the mission of the institution is to participate in raising the
youth'’s employability by supplying the labor market with highly demanded, qualified and skilled technicians
and specialists, in full cooperation and partnership with the private sector, in order to reach sustainable socio-
economic development.

48 Annual Report 2017

“Joining the Dual Studies Program provided me
with the opportunity to experience and explore
the world of business administration, and
practice various management skills. During the
practical periods, | was introduced to many skills
such as precision, punctuality, multitasking,
dealing with people and the use of diverse
computer programs. All these skills have made
me better and improved my self-confidence.
Indeed, | will become a successful manager in
the future

Aya Dadua
Faculty of Business Administration - Siniora Food
Industries

Dual Studies - Al-Quds University

APIC has supported Al-Quds University’s Dual Studies program since 2016, by hosting 13 students throughout
their undergraduate studies. Students in the faculties of electrical engineering, information technology and
business administration get the opportunity to intern at APIC’s subsidiaries during their four-year undergraduate
studies.

Dual Studies is an educational system that combines theoretical study with practical application. Al-Quds
University launched the Dual Studies program in 2015, with funding from the German government through
GIZ. Dual Studies was designed to contribute to raising the professional level of the Palestinian youth and
providing good jobs for students after graduation. Moreover, it aims to bridge the gap between the academic
educational outcomes and the needs and requirements of the Palestinian labor market. The program is being
implemented along the lines of the German experience, which focuses on the integration of academic study
and linking students in the work environment from the first day of enrollment in a specialty. This methodology
provides students with the opportunity to study at Al-Quds University as well as have the chance to practice in
the field of their study at a specialized Palestinian company until they achieve their bachelor’s degree.

APIC
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Youth and Education

GIocK

Stock Simulation Program - Palestine Exchange

Since 2014, APIC has been the exclusive sponsor of the Stock Simulation competition organized by the
Palestine Exchange (PEX). APIC’s sponsorship of the Stock Simulation competition comes as part of its belief in
the importance of education, enabling youth to enhance their capabilities and equipping them with necessary
practical skills for the future.

The Stock Simulation competition is an applied educational tool that targets students from business and
financial faculties in Palestinian universities and enables them to combine theory with practice. It also allows
them to leverage their practical skills and enhances their financial competence in trading securities. It offers
students first-hand experience in trading securities in a virtual environment that simulates the real trading
environment at PEX, under the same rules and regulations. The competition was launched in 2008, with the
participation of three universities. To date, 13 universities across all governorates of Palestine have benefited
from this experience with more than 2,100 students taking part. Each year, APIC participates in the graduation
ceremony organized by PEX, and distributes certificates to all participants and prizes to the winners.

50 Annual Report 2017

King’s Academy

Since 2014, APIC has supported distinguished students from Palestine to study at King’s Academy in Jordan.

King's Academy, located in Madaba Jordan, opened its doors in 2007. It is a non-profit, coeducational boarding
and day school for middle and high school students (grades 7 to 12). The school provides a comprehensive
curriculum based on the American Advanced Placement program and the College Board’s QUEST framework
for teaching and learning. The dynamic curriculum includes an integrated co-curricular program of athletics,
activities and community service, and boarding students live in a nurturing residential environment that allows
them to flourish personally and intellectually. King's students currently number 667 and hail from Jordan and
31 other countries.

APIC :
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Mahmoud Abbas Foundation

Mahmoud Abbas Foundation

Since 2015, APIC has provided scholarships to Palestinian students in Lebanon through the Mahmoud Abbas
Foundation.

Mahmoud Abbas Foundation is a non-profit organization registered in Palestine and Lebanon, founded in 2011
in response to the difficult situation Palestinian people face in refugee camps in the Diaspora, especially in
Lebanon. The foundation helps the refugees through three programs: the student’s scholarship program that
provides scholarships to Palestinian students, to date, around 2500 students have benefits from this program;
the family interdependence program (Takaful), which provides symbolic aid to more than 300 families; and the
youth empowerment program that aims to enhance and develop capabilities of the youth to prepare them for
the labor market and increase their employability chances.

52 Annual Report 2017
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INJAZ Palestine

APIC has maintained its supportfor INJAZ Palestine since 2007, through generous donations and with volunteers
from APIC and its subsidiaries.

INJAZ Palestine is an independent Palestinian organization run and sponsored by a group of pioneer Palestinian
companies. It is a member of the Junior Achievement Worldwide organization, which was established in 1919.
INJAZ Palestine is dedicated to giving young people the knowledge and skills they need to own their economic
success, plan for their future and make smart academic and economic choices. Through partnership with
the private and education sectors, INJAZ provides programs delivered by experienced volunteers from the
Palestinian private sector to inspire and educate youth about entrepreneurial and business innovation.

APIC’s Scholarship for the Children of its Employees

Every year, APIC awards full four-year scholarships to the highest scoring Tawjihi students among the children of
its employees at a Jordanian or Palestinian university

APIC
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The Palestinian Initiative for the Promotion of Global Dialogue and Democracy - MIFTAH

APIC announced a three-year strategic partnership with MIFTAH that will run from 2017 to 2019 to support
its Palestinian Youth Leadership Empowerment program, which seeks to enable young leaders to build their
capacities and effectively contribute to sustainable development efforts.

MIFTAH is a non-governmental non-profit organization that was established in Jerusalem in 1998. It seeks to
promote the principles of democracy and good governance within various components of Palestinian society;
it further seeks to engage local and international public opinion and official circles on the Palestinian cause.
To that end, MIFTAH adopts the mechanisms of an active and in-depth dialogue, the free flow of information
and ideas, as well as local and international networking. One of MIFTAH’s strategic objectives is to promote
good governance through enhancing the role and participation of women and youth in policy and decision-
making within the public sector and local government organizations. This participation is increased through
empowering women and youth political leadership in the West Bank and Gaza Strip for national and local
government elections and supporting women and youth to be well prepared to take on political roles and to
become involved in political and public spheres

54 Annual Report 2017

iy

@ Youth Leadership and Entrepreneurship

7

Gaza Sky Geeks

Gaza Sky Geeks

In 2017, APIC announced its three-year strategic support for Gaza Sky Geeks, which is a technology and
education hub supporting entrepreneurs and software developers in Gaza, Palestine.

Gaza Sky Geeks (GSQ) is the leading co-working space, pre-seed startup accelerator and technology education
hub in Gaza. Its mission is to build an internationally competitive technology ecosystem in Palestine through
online freelancing, outsourcing and tech startups that create high-salary jobs. GSG convenes designers,
developers and startup founders under one roof to share ideas, code and build brighter futures by selling
products and services online. In 2017, GSG helped generate over USD 200,000 in investment and revenue,
helped train and educate over 1,000 unique individuals in technology and business, and made it easier for
Palestinian businesses to receive payments online.
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Global Entrepreneurial Week in Palestine

APIC supported the Global Entrepreneurial Week 2017 in Palestine as part of its investment in youth and
entrepreneurship in Palestine. The event aims to equip youth with essential leadership skills and qualifications
to penetrate the work environment, take sound decisions while having a positive attitude in order to take an
idea and turn it into a reality and excel both on local and regional levels.

APIC was also a jury member in the panel evaluating entrepreneurship projects through the Get in the Ring
(GITR) competition. GITRis a global competition that is conducted in more than 70 countries worldwide, offering
participants and emerging projects a platform to communicate with investors and partners. Entrepreneurs
competed in presenting their skills, management expertise and achievements of sales, revenues, customers,
partnerships or potential investments.

The Global Entrepreneurship Week is an important platform that supports youth and expands their perceptions
of innovation and entrepreneurship. It also contributes to Palestinian economic development by supporting
the growth of startups and assisting them to network with investors.

56 Annual Report 2017

7 | King Hussein Cancer Foundation
[( King Hussein Cancer Center

King Hussein Cancer Center

APIC subsidiary Siniora Food Industries Company continues its annual support for the King Hussein Cancer
Center in Jordan.

The King Hussein Cancer Center is a pioneering medical institution in the Middle East that provides the latest
scientific developments in holistic cancer care for patients, both children and adults. The center is accredited
by the Joint Commission International (JCI) as a specialized center in comprehensive cancer care. It is the only
medical center outside the United States of America to be awarded the Joint Commission International Clinical
Care Program Certificate (CCPC) for its oncology program.

APIC

Ll >



S
(9}
]
wv
(]
o
©
S
3]
o3
S
)
O

>
=
2
%)
c
o
Q
7
[}
o

@ Health and Medical Care

e

T L
Bl o arnames D riguila b e
RS PR T

East Jerusalem Hospitals Network

In 2017, APIC supported the East Jerusalem Hospitals Network in line with the network’s mission of supporting
poor and uninsured people in East Jerusalem.

The East Jerusalem Hospitals Network (EJHN) was established in 1997, with the strategic vision of unifying
health facilities in East Jerusalem and emphasizing their significant role within the Palestinian health system.
The EJHN comprises six facilities including Makassed Islamic Charitable Hospital, Augusta Victoria Hospital, St.
John Eye Hospital, St. Joseph Hospital, Red Crescent Society Hospital and the Jerusalem Princess Basma Center.
The EJHN’s work focuses on developing its institutions, improving the quality of the services provided and
assuring a continuum of care.

On average, over 70% of the EJHN patients are referred from the West Bank and the Gaza Strip. EJHN hospitals
deliver quality services through the implementation of patient safety standards and international accreditation
standards (ISO, JCI). EJHN represent the main training hub in Palestine, with more than 150 resident doctors
undertaking two to six years of training in 12 specialties every year, together with hundreds of medical students,
nurses and technicians
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The Augusta Victoria Hospital- Jerusalem

In 2017, APIC supported the bus humanitarian service initiative at Augusta Victoria Hospital for patients
from Gaza and their companions. The bus is equipped with the latest technology and seats that serve and
provide comfort to all patients, including people with disabilities, and takes into consideration their health and
conditions, especially once they leave the treatment sessions. The idea to launch a bus that helps alleviate the
suffering of the people of Gaza came about due to the difficulties they were facing using public transport from
the hospital to their place of residence at Mount of Olives Hotel, which is near the hospital. The bus has played
an important role in engaging pediatric and adult patients and their companions, taking them to visit holy sites
and as well as entertainment destinations in Jerusalem.

The Augusta Victoria Hospital (AVH), founded in 1950, is a member of the East Jerusalem Hospitals Network
and one of the largest projects of the Lutheran World Federation in the Middle East. AVH is the only medical
institution providing radiotherapy treatment and pediatric hemodialysis care for Palestinian patients from the
West Bank and Gaza. AVH is a proud holder of the JCIA and ISO certifications.
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Culture and Heritage 4:1\,%& Culture and Heritage

For many years, APIC has continued its support of the Palestinian cultural sector, helping to contribute to the
preservation of Palestinian cultural heritage, encouraging cultural and artistic creativity among the youth as

well as supporting cultural institutions in fulfilling their national missions. R
In 2017, APIC sponsored the Palestine International Festival held in the Palestinian cities of Ramallah, Gaza, ]F_{."
Jenin and Nablus. o »

El-Funoun Palestinian Popular Dance Troupe

APIC has supported EI-Funoun Palestinian Popular Dance Troupe since 2016 as part of a strategic partnership
that spanned three years, from 2016 to 2018.

El-Funoun Palestinian Popular Dance Troupe is an independent, non-profit organization that is entirely
volunteer-based. El-Funoun was established in 1979, by a number of talented and committed artists. Since
then, the troupe has been recognized as the leading Palestinian dance group with an impressive track record
of over 1500 performances locally and internationally, 15 productions and tens of dance pieces. EI-Funoun
has won several awards from local and international festivals for its presentation of Palestinian folklore and
contemporary culture through elaborate choreographed forms that embody its own unique vision of Palestinian
dance.The troupe is widely recognized as the cultural entity that has played the most significant role in reviving
and reinvigorating Palestinian dance and music folklore.
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Yabous Cultural Center

APIC signed a strategic cultural partnership agreement with the Yabous Cultural Center for three years, between
2017 and 2019, to assist the center in achieving its goal of reviving the cultural life in Jerusalem.

Yabous is a Jerusalem-based Palestinian organization founded in 1995, by Suhail Khoury and a group of
initiators with the goal of reviving cultural life in Jerusalem. Yabous is the historical first name of Jerusalem. After
several years of work, Yabous rented Cinema Al Quds on Al Zahra Street, and transformed it into a multipurpose
cultural center. The center has a developmental vision of reviving culture and arts in Jerusalem to meet the
needs and rights of the people of all ages, including children, irrelevant of gender, color, religion and nationality.
Through various cultural events, Yabous is creating a new social reality, artistic creativity and is reviving culture
in Jerusalem.

62 Annual Report 2017

Ty T T B

Other Areas of Support

Eye on Palestine Economic Program on CNBC Arabia

APIC sponsors the “Eye of Palestine” economic program, which was launched in November 2017 on CNBC
Arabia. This comes as part of its belief in the importance of contributing to changing the stereotype about the
Palestinian economy among the Arab business community and media, in addition to promoting investment
opportunities in the economy by highlighting Palestinian success stories via a specialized channel in the
economic, financial and business fields in the Middle East.

“Eye on Palestine” aims to place Palestinian economic activity on the agenda of Arab businesses. It is broadcast
weekly and presents the latest economic development and news, Palestine stock exchange trading reviews
and listed companies’ news, Palestinian success stories and interviews with economic and official figures. The
program also includes humanitarian and social issues.

Moreover, and throughout 2017, APIC and its subsidiaries provided financial and in-kind support to various
groups and organizations. These include:

- Palestine Federation of Industries

+ Thalassemia Friends Society

« Beitunia Municipality

« Sports, cultural and youth centers and clubs

« A number of institutions working to increase global awareness of the socio-economic, political and cultural
characteristics of Palestine
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Summary of Financial Performance APIC's Total Revenues (USD millions)
2013-2017

The year 2017 witnessed an increase in total revenues, amounting to USD 683.74 million, which is a 12.6% 800 -
increase compared to 2016. Total expenses of APIC group increased by 6.8% over the previous year.

o
o
w
N
w
N

700 -
Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) of the group were up by 26.8% compared 607.362

. oy . 600 -
with 2016, and amounted to USD 38.9 million in 2017. 536.155 523.592

Consequently, the group’s net profit, including non-controlling interest, witnessed significant growth of 500 A 444.573
46.2% compared to 2016, and amounted to USD 17.46 million in 2017, whereas net profit attributed to APIC

shareholders grew by 44.7% over 2016, and amounted to USD 11.93 million in 2017. 400 7

Millions

APIC’s Financial Position 300 7

Total assets amounted to USD 356.5 million at the end of 2017, an increase of 8.1% over 2016, of which current 200 -

assets amounted to USD 201.5 million, with an increase of 7.6% over 2016. 100

3333333333»>

The group’s working capital amounted to USD 53.6 million at the end of 2017, compared to USD 42.4 million at
the end of 2016.

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

The balance of the group’s bank borrowing and loans reached USD 131.4 million at the end of 2017, and were

comprised of short-term and long-term borrowing as well as bonds, noting that the balance of bank borrowing APIC's Historical Profit Margins
and loans by the end of 2017 was very similar to the balance at the end of the previous year 2016. 2013-2017

It is also worth noting that in early January 2017, APIC holding (the mother company) issued new five-year 14.0% 7 13.7% 13.2%

bonds with a total nominal value of USD 35 million, which reach maturity in January 2022. The amount of 12.9% 12.5%
USD 20 million was utilized to repay the first issued bonds, which matured on January 31, 2017; USD 8 million
were used to settle a portion of the company’s bank loans during that period, while the remaining balance
was utilized in financing various company investments; thus, the bonds represented 26.6% of the group’s total
borrowing at the end of 2017. 10.0%

-
N
O
(=]
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12.0%

As for owners’ equity in 2017, USD 3.96 million were distributed as cash dividends to shareholders against
realized group net profit of USD 18.13 million from the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, of 8.0%
which USD 12.59 million in profit were attributed to APIC shareholders. Hence, total owners’ equity, including
non-controlling interest, amounted to USD 128.9 million at the end of 2017, an increase of 9% over 2016. Total 6.0% -
APIC shareholders’ equity amounted to USD 94.25 million at the end of 2017, an increase of 9.7% over 2016.

6.3%
5.5%
5.2% 5.0%

2.5% 2.4%
2.1% F70 2.0%
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4.0%

The following charts demonstrate the development of revenues, various profit margins and ratios, as well as
earnings per share achieved between 2013 and 2017: 2.0%
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APIC's Net Shareholders' Equity (USD millions)

100 2013 - 2017 94.250
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The charts below demonstrate total assets and net shareholders’ equity between 2013 and 2017: The following chart demonstrates the company’s book value per share between 2013 and 2017:

1.42

APIC's Total Assets (USD millions) Book Value Per Share (USD)
2013-2017 1.4 1.40 2013 -2017
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Discrepancy Between Initial Disclosure And Final Audited Results

In February 2018, APIC disclosed its consolidated preliminary financial statements for the year 2017 before audit
by the external auditor and auditor’s expressed opinion thereon. No major discrepancies were found after the
completion of auditing except for an increase of USD 330,000 in the fair value of some financial assets available
for sale and some discrepancies in forex exchange rates in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, in addition to some minor modifications and classifications accredited by the auditors.

Consolidated Statement of Income

+ Revenues were 0.05% lower than the preliminary results after eliminating intercompany commercial transac-
tions within the group’s subsidiaries, involving revenues and their related expenses; part of the revenues were
reclassified and divided between revenues from services and revenues from sales, as well as the reallocation
of some expenses that have a direct relation on the cost of sales and revenues.

« Net profit, including minority rights, were USD 17,000 more than the preliminary results. This was largely due
to additional net profits from the Jericho Mineral Water Factory Company (under liquidation), which were not
recorded in the preliminary results.

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A number of accounts and items have been reclassified in the statement of financial position in accordance with
the auditor’s normal classification, as well as the effect of additional gains on cumulative change in fair value
arising from the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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Deloitte. s s
§90 Jatwvan Greet

BRITISH VIRGIN ISLANDS Aemman, R.G: Box 248

Botdan

Tel: #9632 3] & 520 2200
Fmed: #9ED (3] & 550 2219
e St e CoeT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
Page

AM} 30687

To the Shareholders of

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 75 R e S CHA S S Loy Dy Ry

Independent Auditor’s Report 71 - 74

Consolidated Statement of Income 76 AL -

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 77
Opinlon
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Owners’ Equity 78 'I':'" “‘l,":t"”m uml ||W:LTLHISIMM| of r-:":" Palestinian
_ statement of Minancisl position 8s of December 31, 2017, and the consslidated
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 79 statement of income, consolidated statement of comprehensive Income,
consolidated statement of changes in owners' equity, and the consolidated
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 80 - 119 mmmn"uum't mw"“"m’ﬁim:mmfﬂd A S

In cur opindon, the accompanying financial statements present fairy, in all matesial
respacis, the condolidated financial position of the Company as of December 31,
2017, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cach fows far
the wyear then ended in accordance with Intemnational Financial Reporting
Standards.

Basis for Opinlan

We conducted our audit in accondance with International Standands on 5
Owir responsibitities under those standards are further described In the =Audibor's
Responsibilites for the Audit of the consolidated Financlal Statements” section of
our report, We are Independent of the Company in sccordance with the
international Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants together with the other sthical requirements that are
redevant to our audit of the Company's consolidated financial statements in Jordan,
and we have fulfilled our ather ethical responsibilities. We balisve that the audit
evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion,
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Audit

our audit of the

financial staternents of thée current vear. Thede

matters were addressed (n the context of our audit of the consalidated financial
statermnents &5 & whole, and In forming our opinion théreon, and we do not provide

& separate opinion on these

Provision for Accounts Recslvabls
The provisian for accounts recelvable is
a key audit matter., It reguires the
managemsent 4] LS
assumplions (o assess the collectability
of accounts receiveble based on the
customers”  financial  conditbons  and
related oredil risks. The balance of net
sccounts  recelvebla  amounted  Eo
uso 79,008,086, representing
approximately 2% of the assets
amount a5 of December 31, 2017,

The nature and characteristics of
COMpAnyY's actounts recelvable ame
varied, They include export, locsl gales,
governmental recelvables and other
recelvables. This requires  making
assumptions and using estimates to ke
the provision for the impairment in these
redihvables,

Inm

Inventory |8 & key sodit matber. It
requires the company’s management ta
use assumplions to I3 net realizable
value mnd whether there's a need for &
provision for impabrment or to write-off
part of it. The balance of net
amounted o s ??égj.ﬁz
repredanting approximately 22 tha
ﬁlﬂh amount as of December 31,

17,

The nature and chamacteristics of
imventory ane varied. They Include feod,
medical supplies and spare parts. This
requines making assumptions and using
astimates to takée the provision for
impairment in inventory.

Scope of Audit to Address Risks
Thi foblowed audit procedures included
understanding the nature of accounts

Furthermore, we recalculsted the reguined
provisions which was provided by the
ManAgement,
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Other Matter
The accompanying consofidated financial statements sre & translation of the
mwmumummmmnmmmmmmm

Other Information

Management 5 responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the other information In the annual report axcduding the finandal
statements and the Independent auditor's report thereon, which is expected to be
made avallable to us afper the date of our audit report. Our opinéom on the financial
statements does not cover the other information, and we do not express any form
of assurance or conclusion theraan,

In connection with gur audit of the financial staterments, our responsibility s to read
the other infermation mentioned abowe when £ becomes available to us and, In
doing %0, conslder whether the other information is materislly nconsistent with tha
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or ctherwise appesrs
to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of M nt and Those Charged with Governance for

the Consolidated Statemeants

mtu for the preparation and folr presentation of the
fin statements in accordance with IFRS, and for swch internal

contrd & management determines necessary to emable the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that are free from materal misstatesnent,
whether dug to fraud or amor,

Insi‘puliﬁ the consolidated financial statements, managerment & responsible for
a55e55] Company’s ability to confinue a2 & going concern, dischosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern, and using the going concem basts of
accounting unless man b either intends to lquidate the Company of b0 ceass
operations, or has nd realistic altemative but to do 5o,

Those cha with gowvernance are responsible for overseeing the Com ]
Hmﬂﬂmﬁmm o

Auditor's Responsibliities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financisd statements as & whole &re frée from materiasl misstatement, whether due
to fraud or errgr, and 10 e a0 a report that Inclides our opindon.
Reasonable assurance |8 & high level of assurance, but Is not a guarantes that an
audit conducted in accordance with [5As will always detect a material misstatemant
moketal Indhvidually mmm.:.hu mu';-“d:mumﬂ;-;rw

! or . =1 to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements,
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[HOLDING COMPANY]
BRITISH YIRGIN ISLANDS
HOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. Genersl
a, Arab Palestinian Investment Company (Molding Company) was established on
September 20, 1994, and registered in the British Virgin l1slands under
Mumber (128626), with an authorized capial of USD 70 milion divided nbe
70 million shares at USD 1 par value per share,
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b, Several amendmanis were made to the Company’s capital, in which the latest
veas made on April F3, 2017 as per the decition made by the Company’s
general assembly in ifS meeting held on that date, where the pasd up capital
of the comparny was inoreased by USD 4, 000 000 to becormes USD 70000, 000,
The increase was made through capitalizing part of the retained eamings. The
approvals were cbtaingd from the reguiatory authorities in Palestine and the
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¢ The Company's maln objectives inchude the management of 5 subshdiary g EEEEEEEEE
companies; participating in the management of other investes companies;
investing in shares, bonds, and securities as well as granting loans,
guarantees, and financing its subsidisries, e SE__HE B
SRR 4FEE 3 iaE
d. The hasdquarters ané heisted in Mecca Streef, PO, Box 341489 Amaman
11194 = Jordan. Cr el = .
s 'E':-'E-'Erﬁi' :
©. During the year 2013, the Company's Gensrsl Assembly approved the ﬁErF;r.E:LEE
conwersion af the Company's legal status fram a Foresgn Private Shareholding EBUTTREZVER
Compaiy 1@ & Fonsign Public Compary and to kst the Company's shares in
Pabesting stock sxchange, The procedures for the conversion were completed . -5
ofn January 15, 2014, The Company’s shares were ligted in the Palestine stock 3 E - % = E E EE EE
exchange on March 2, 2014, - = .

f. The Board of Directors approved the Company's consolidated financial
statements on March £2, 2008,
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- The corsolidated financial statements indlude the financal statements of the
Company, A4 fubdsdibried and entities under 15 control. Contral is achiswed
when the Company has the power to govemnn the fimancial and operating
policies of the sulbssdiaries 50 as to obtain benefits from their Sctielies. AN
ntercompany transactions, balances, revenues and expendss between the
Company and its subsidiaries are eliminated.
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= The financial staterménts of the subsidiary companies ang prepaned using the
same accounting policies adopted by the Company. If the accounting policies
adopted by the subsidiary companies are different from those sdopted by the
Company, the necessary adjustments to the financial statements of the
subsidiary compankes are made 25 a8 o comply with the acoounting policies
adopbed by the Company.
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The follpwing are the most important finandal infarmation for the subsidiary companies for

thee wibr 2017
For the year ended
December 31, 2017 Decormbier 31, 2017
Taotal Tatal Tatal Taotal
Company’s Name Assets Liabilities  Revenue  Expenses
UsD (11+] UsD Uso
#rab Palestinian Storage Company BES B4E 2,533 973 285 565 617,519
Medical Supplies and Services Comparny 53,112,564  35000,02F 56,524,888 50,878,600
Unipal General Trading Company 82,335,537 53,907,106 465504 208 450,644,714
Mational Aluminum and Profiles Compary 33,677,129 18,808,036 23,517,963 22,238,833
Palestine Automobile Company 44975, 731 27,826,128 35,451,314 35 020,067
Sky Advertising, Public Relations and
events Company 3,850,040 1,871,674 6,055,933 5569327
Sinigra Food Industnes Company ** 86,702,681 37,415,322 TR TMG60 0,011,063
Arsb Palestinibn Shopping Cenbers
Compary 25913,510 15346854 30,355,612 30,071,144
Jericho Watwral and Miners] Water Factory
Comparny 20,147 GBE_ 1865 B .
Arabs Leasing Company 11,863,X57 8,332,931 &52,765 490,921
Arab Palestinian [nvestment Company
J Jordan (Exemgted) 3,530,465 3,007,091 211,625 70,604

The results of the subsidisries” operations are included in the consolidated
statement of income from the date of ocwnership e, the date i which the
actual contral over the subsidary is transferred to the Company, The results
of operaticns of dsposed subsadiares are included in the consolidated
statemant of infome up o the date of disposal Le. the date in which the
Company kast its control over the subsidiary.

Man-controlling intenest represents the part of a subsidiany's equity that is not
o By the Company,

All the subsidiary companies operabe in the Palestindan Authority Termtones,
exoept for Sirlora Pood Industries Company &nd Arab Palestinian Investmsent
Compary f Jordan (exempied) as they operate in The Hashemibe Kingdom of
Jandan.

The Company has actual controd over the Medical Supples and Services
Company &% i controls its Management Committes; consequently, controlling
the Company's financial ard operating palices,

On hpril 5, 2016, Sinora Food Industres comparny has completed all the hegal
procedisnes related to the acquesition of 70% of A = Masa Meat Processing
Company = Dubai, United Arab Emirates. The share of the Company from the
acquistion amounted o 44, 817, 10% UAE Dirham {squivalent to 12,199 6862
LSOy, The company's operations wene consolidated for Al - Mada meat
processing compary &5 of April 1, 2016,
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Basis of Preparation of the Consolidated Financal Statements:

Thi condolidated finandal statements have been prepaned in acoordance with
the standands issued by the International Accounting Stamdands Boand and
interpretations issued by the Intermational Financial Standards Interpretation
Committes, emanating from the International Standards Board.

The reporting currency of the consolidated financial statements of The
Company and its subsidiaries is the WS Dwollar, which is alse the Tuncicnal
CUrmpncy.

The accounting policies adoptes in the preparation of the consolidated
financal statements for this year are oongistent with those applisd for the
year ended December 31, 2016 exoept for what is mentioned in note (5fa) of
the: consakdatind financial statements,

The following are the mast sigrificant sccounting policies. adapted:

. Financial Assets for Trading

Financial assets for trading stated at Fair Value in the statement of income
represent inmvestments in companies” shares traded in active maricets. The
ol pectie af I'I-EHII'H; thisds pssets S W geEnerate incoeme Troem Shor-0enm
market prices’ Muctuaticns or rading pralit margen,

Financial assets for trading are stated at cost in the statement of income at
the date of acquisition and revalued to their fair valugs at the fiscal year-end,
The gain or koes resulting from the changes in their fair values is taken To the
consolidated statement of ncome.

b, Finpncial Asgets Available-Tor-Faly

Represent financial assets for which the Company does not intend to classify
a% financial assets available for frading or held to maturity.

Available-for-sale investments are sEafed a1 codt a1 the date of Boquision,
and revalusd to thesr fair values st the fiscal year-end, The gain or loss
resulting from revalustion is taken to & Separabe account in the consolidated
statedmant af comprafbendive inoome and in the consohdated statlement of
awnerd’ eguity. When these assels ane Mully or partially scbd, or determined o
b impaired, the resulling gain o loss s taken [0 the consoldated statement
af mncome, including the related amounts provicusly booked within owners'
Equity, Thi impairment loss proviously recorded in the consolidated statement
al imcomse can be recosened i iE becomes objectively ewident that the incresss
in fair value has ocourred in @ period subseguent to the recording of the
impairment koss. The impairment loss in the company's shares B recovered
through the cumulative change in the fair value snd for debt instrsments
throwgh the consolidated statement of income. Furthermons, Fpestments for
which faér wvalues cannot Be nelisbly mesdured are Stated &t cost. IF
impairment in their valee socurs, the impairment 10958 B taken o Ehe
corsolidated statement of indome,
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[nwestment 0 lands s stated af cost. Any gains or losses are recognized upon
completion of a sale and taken to the consolidated statement of incame.
Mgreceser, the fair value i deciosed in the condolidated financial statements,
and any mpaiiiment in value i@ taken to the consolidated statement of
moome.

Finished goods and work in process are stated st o8t o et realizable value,
whichewver & lower, m!ﬂmhrdﬂr‘fﬂﬂl!dlﬁﬂ Slowr-moving items, Cost
includes: raw materials codl, direct labor and indirect manifacturing costs,

Raw matérials are stated at the kower of cost or net realizable value. Finished
geodds and work in process are stated ab the lower of oot or net realizabds
valise, Cost inclsdes raw materials and the related dieect and indirect
mianufacturing costs.

Cars inventory s stated at the lower of cost of net realizable value on the
badtia af the sctual cost of each car, Coost consists of all expenses incurred by
the Comparny wntil the inventory s delvered to the Company’s warehouses
anrd showrcoms or the warehouses st the Company's port (bended),

Spane parts ane stated at the lower of cost or net realizable walue based on
the weighted average method,

Revenue from the sale of goods B recognised when all of the Tallowing
conditions are Satefied:

When the Company has trangferred the significant risks and rewards of
ewrrship of the goods to the buyer;

When the Company retans neither osntinuing managerial involwement to the
digree uspally associated with the ownership nor effective confrol over the
Hinds sold;

When it & probable that the econemic benes associaled with the transaction
will flgwe 10 the Company;

Wrian the costs incurmed of (o be incumred in respect of the transsction can be
misasured reliablhy.

Revenue from services i recognized when services are performed and the
related ifvolces ane Bsped,

Property, Plant and equipment are stated ab cost net of acocumulated
depreciation and any impairment in valie, whereas the lands of the Arab
Pal=stinian shopping centers Comgany; and National Aluminum and Profiles
Company (subsidiary companies) are stated &t fair value a1 the date of
ownership transfer to the group. Property, plant and squipmest (except for
lareds) are depreciated according [0 their usehyl livies, using the straight-ling
mathad at annual rates ranging from 2% to 25%.
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When the expeiied recoverabls amount of any Property, Plant and equipment
i less than its net book value, the net book value i reduced b the sxpected
recoverable amount, and an impaiement ko (if any) B taken to the
consolidated statement of noome.

The useful lives of the Property, Plant and equipment are reviewsd ak the end
af eadh year. If the expecied useful lifg differs from the previous estimate,
the diferencd & booked In subsequent years &% & change in Acoounting
estmates,

Goodwill B recorded at cost, which represents the excess amount paid to
Boquire or purchase an investment in a subsidiary over the Company's shane
of the Tair valer of fs net assets at the acguisition dabe, Geodwill resulting
fram the acquisition of a subsidiary company i booked as & Separate item
within the intangible assets.

Goodwill & allocated aver the cash generating unit{s) for the purpose of
testing the impastment in its value,

Thiz walise of goodwill ks tested for impairment &t the date of the consclidated
financial statements. Goodwill walee i reduced when thene is avidenoe thak it
has declined or the recovesable walee of the cash generating wnit(s) is less
than the book value recorded for the cash generating unit(s). The decline in
walwd ia aken (o the congalidaied statement of incomme &5 an impairment losd.

Accgunts receivable are stated ab net realizable walue after booking &
prowision for doubtful debts, The proeEson & taken in the consolidated
statement of Incormse accordeng fo wmtli estimates of the reccverabin
amounts from recenvables,

Bank interest is taken to the consolidsted statesment of income using the
accrual basis.

End-ol-service indemnity provision for employees i booked sccording to the
Compary's intemnal regulations on the basis of the badic salary and based on
chi-mankh salary for cach year of Service,

End-of-service indemnity paid to resigned and torminated employees s
charged to the end-of-sérvice indemnity provision, Moreower, the additional
prowsion booked for the end-of-serace indemnity for employees & changed to
the consolidated statement of ncome.

Income from inwestments i taken bo fevenues when declared (i.e. upon
approval by the general assembly af the irvesies company).
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L Inceme Tax

Income tax expenses represent acoued taxes and deferred taoss,

Income Eax expenses are accounted for on the basis of taxable income.
Moreower, taxable income dffers from income declared in the consolidated
financlal statements becsuse the Witer indudes non-taxable revenise o tax
expEnses not deductible in the current year but deductible in subseguent
yoars, socurmnualated lesses accepiable by the tax authorities, and iems nat
sccepted for LAx purpdseds of subject (o tax,

Taxes are calculated on the basis of the tax fabes prescribed according to the
prewaling laws, regulations, and nstrections of the countries where the
subsidiary CoMpanies operat in,

Deferred taxes are taces sxpected to b paid or moovered as a result of
temiporary timing differences between the value of the assets of the labilities
in the financial statements and the walee on the Dasia of which taxable
incoeme is calculated, Mongover, deferred tawes are calculated based on the
liability methad in the consclidated statement of finandal position according
to the tax rates expected o be applied upon the settlement of the tax liability
or realization of the deferred thx assets,

Deferred tax asscts and labdities are resiewed B8 af the date of the
corsalidated financial statemaents, and reduced in case it S expected that ne
benefit will Arige therefrom, parially or [otalby.

m.__Oifsetting

Financial aseets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount s
reflactad in the consolidated statement of financial pesition oaly when there
&re legal rights to offsef the recognized amounts, or assets ane realined and
labilities settled simultanecusly.

n._ Cagital

Cost of issuEng or purchasing the Bank's shares

Thees &eil off issuanoe or purchase of the Company’s shares is recognized in the
fetained Earmings (net afer tax eoffect i any). OF the purchade/issue
transaction has not been complebed, then the cost will be recognized as an
aapange in the consolidated statement of Mobme,

. _Operaticnsl Leasing Contracts

Operational kEasing contracls an recognized as expense based on the straight
method and on the rent duration, unless there (5 another basis for the time
guraticn when the sconomic benefs from he lesses ane axpected. The
expected rents resulting from the financial bease contrack ane reconded as
expensg i the pericd i which incummed,
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Freparation of the consolidated financial statements and the applcation of the
accounting  policies require  the Company's management o perfosm
assessments and assumptions that affect the amounts of sssets snd labilities
and to disclase all contingent Mabddees, Moreover, these assessmentd &nd
paspmptions affect fevenues, expenses, provisions amd the changes in faer
value within the consolidsted staternent of comprehansivie incomg  and
congolidated owners' equity. In particular, it is requred by the Company's
managament to issue significant judgments and SSsumptions to assess future
cash flow amounts and their timings, The mentioned assessments are
mecesshrily based of assumptions and factors with warying degrees of
consideration and uwncertainty and the actual results may differ from
asEEsments dug to the changes resulting from the conditions and
circimstances of thase assessments in the future,

We believe that the estimates adopbed in the consolidated financial statements are
reasanatile and the detass ang as follows:

& provision for doubtful debts is taken on basis and estimates approved by
the Compary’s management in conformity wath the requirements of
International Finarcial Reporting Standards {[FRSs).

The fiscal year i charged with B portion of income thx expenditure in
accordancs with the regulations and laws, and [Aternational  Financial
Reporting Standards, Moreowver, deferred tax assets and liabisties and the
incoamee Bax provigian ane booksd,

Management perigdically reassesses the economic useful lives of the tangible
and intangible asoets for thie purpose of calculating the annual depreciation
and amortication based on the general condition of these sssets and the
assessment of their useful sconomic lives expected in the future, Impairment
loss is taken to the consolidated statement of income.

A provision is taken for lawsuits raised against the Company, This prosision is
subijpect to an adequate legal Study prepared by the Company's legal advisor.
The study highlights the patential risks that the Company may encounter in
the future. Such legal assessments are revicwed periodically.

Management fnpquenily reviews financial sssets stated a1 cost 1o etimabe Arvy
decling in thewr values. Impairment IS taken be the consclidated statement of
income for the year.

Fair valwe Rierarchy: The Comgany & required to determing and disdase the
bevel in Ethe Tadr walue hieranchy info which the fair value measurements sre
categarized in their entirety, segregating fair walue measurements @
accordance with the levels defined in Internetionsl Financial Reporting
Standards, Differentiating bebween Level 2 and Lewvel 3 far  value
migasurements, [.e., assessing whether inpuls ane absérvable and whether the
unobservable inputs are WI‘HEIM may require judgemant and a careful
analysis of the inputs uded to measene faer value, including consideration of
factors dpecific bo the asset or Rability.
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5a New and revised IFRSs applied with mo material effect on the
consolidated financial statements

The following new and revided IFRSs, which became effective for annual periods

beginning on or after lanuasy 1, 2007, have been adopted in these consolidated

financial stakefsents.

The Company has applied these amendrents for the first time in the current year.
The amendments clarify Bow &h entity should evaluate whether there will be
sufficient future taxable profits against which it can utilse a deductible temporany
diffaramoe,

The applicaticn of these amendments has had no impact on the Company's
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to [AS 7 Disciogiire Ioitiative

The Company has applied these amendments for tha first time in the current year,
Thie amendments fequire an entity t0 provide disclosures that enable vsers of the
congolidated financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities ariging from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes,

The Company's hsbilities arsing from financing activitses consist of bormowings
(hote 20). The Coempany made a reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of these items during the year and pricr year. The application of these
amendments has had no impact on the Company’s financial Statements,

The Company has applied the amendments te IFRS 12 includéd & the Annosl
Improvements to IFRSS 2014-2016 Cycle for the first time in the current vear, The
other amendments induded in this package ang not et mandatorily effective and
they hive nat been aadty adopted by the Group (S8 note 5 - b).

TFRS 12 stabes that an entity need not provide summarnised finandsl nfarmation for
interests in subsidiaries, associates or joint ventunes that are clasgsified {or included
in & disposal group that is dassified) a4 held Tor gale. The amendments clanfy that
this s the only conokidion fram the disclosure reguirsments of IFRS 12 for such
ntenegns.

The application of these amendments has had no effect on the Comgany's
consoldated financial statements as none of the Group™s interests in these antities
are clagsified, or included in & disposal group that is classified, as held for sabe,

S5b MNew and revised IFRS in issue bul net yot effective
Thie Comparry has not yet applied the fllcwing new and revised IFRSs that hawe
b imsued but ane not yet affective:

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2014 - 2016 Cycle amending
IFRS 1 and IAS 28

The improvements incliede the amendments an IFRS 1 and [AS 28 and they ane
effective for annual pericds beginaing on oF after January 1, 2018,
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Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017
The improvements include the amendments on IFRS 3, IFRS 11, [AS 12 and 1AS 23
and they are effective for annual periods beganning on or after January 1, 2019

IFRIC 22 Forelgn Currency Transactions and Advance Considerstion

The interpretation addresses foreign currency  trangactions or parts  of

Dransecing whire:

= theng i consideration that is denomanated or priced in & faresgn currency;

*  the enlity recognises & prepayment asset or & deferred income liability in
respect of that consideration, in sdvance of the recognition of the related
asset, expeEnse or Moome: and

« the prepaymsent sssel of deferrod nocamne Eability is AN =manetary,

The interpretation is effective for annual pericds beganning on or after January |1,
2016,

IFRIC 23 Uncortalinty over Income Tax Treatments

The interpretation addresses the determenalion of taable profit {tas s, Lax

bases, wnused tax lotaes, whused tax credEs and bax rates, when there s

uncertaenty fver indame tax trealments under [AS 12, It specifically considers:

= Whethar tax treatments should be conskderned collectivgly;

=+ Assumplions for taxation authorities” examinations;

= The determination of taxable profit (tax loess), tax bases, unused tax bosses,
wnissed tax credits and tax rates: and

»  The cffect Dl'-l:l‘langci in facts and circurnstances.

The interpretation is efective for annual pericds beginning on or after Manuary |,
2019,

Amendmaents to IFRS I Share Based Payment

The amendments are relsted to cassification and messurement of share based
payfent trantactions and they are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2018,

Amendments to IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

The amendments relating to the different eMective dates of IFRS 9 and the
f-urtl"lturl'lll'lﬂ néw Infurance contracts standard and they are effective for anmual
pricsds Beginning on or after Jansary 1, 2018,

Amendmants 1o IAS 40 Investment Property

Faragraph 57 has been amended to state that an entity shall transfer a propérty ta,
or from, investment property when, and only when, there s evidence of & dhange in
use. A change of use ooours if property mests, or ceased to mest, the definition of
investment property. A& change in management's intentions for the use of a
property by tdsel doss pol constitute svidence of a change in use, Tha paragraph
has bein amended o state that the list of reamples thorgin & nan-exhaustive.

The Amendments ane effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2018,

Amendments to TAS 28 Tnvestment in Afsociates and Joint Ventures

The amendments are related Bo |ﬁ-|‘|I;-!ErI'I'I- interests im  associates and Jiimt
ventures, These amendrments clarify that an entity applies IFRS 9 Finarcial
Instruments to r-:nﬂ-l.&rl'l:'l nbEreng in an adscciate of jeinl venture that Tarm part of
the net investment in the associate or Jaink ventigrg bat (o which the squily mathod
i mob applied.

The Amendments are efectivie for annual pericds beginning on or after January 1,
I00%,
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IFRS 16 Leases

IERS 16 specifies how an [FRS rEporter will Pecognise, mEsune, presant and
digsciote leased. The standard provides & sEght EREen sCoounting madel, reguinng
lefamps b recognise assets and labilities Tor all lzases unless the lease term i 12
Manths oF less of the underlying asset has a low value. Lessors continue to classify
leases af ppoTating o finance, with [FRS 1&'s approsch 1o Egdar BOCOUNTING
substantially unchanged from it predecessor, 1AS 17,

The Company will apply IFRS 16 i the effective dabe which is the annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2019 The Company s in the process of evaluating
the impact of IFRS 16 on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 9 Flranclal Instruments

The amandments are related to prepayment features with neghthve companaation.
This amends the existing requirements in IFRS 9 regarding termination rights in
order o allew measurement b amortised oSt (or, depending on the business
model, at fair value theough other comprehensive income) even in the case of
negative OOMm pERdStan payments,

The Assendments are effective for annwal periods beginning on or after January 1,
2019,

IFRS @ Financial Instruments (revised versions in 2000, 2010, 2013 and
2014}

IFRS % igtued in Novemiber 2000 introduced new requirements for the
dlazsification amd measurement of financlal assets. IFRS 9 was subsequently
amended in Octobar 2000 to include requirements for the dassification and
measurement of finarcial kabilties and for derecognitian, and in Nevember 2043
e Inchede the new reguirements for genersl hedge Booonnting. Anather revissd
version of [FRS 9 was issued in July 2014 mainly to indude a) impainment
rsjuirerments for financial assets and ) limited amendments to the classification
and measuremient requirements by introducing a “faic walue through other
comgrehensivie income” (FYTOCT) messurement cabegory for certain simple debt
Ingtruments.

A finalised wversion of [FRS 9 which Containg accounting requirements for
financial nstrufments, replacing 1AS 39 Financlal fnstruments: Recogrition o
Megsurement, The standard contains requinements in the following areas;

+ Classification and measurement: Foancial assets are  classilied by
reference to the business rmodel within which they arg hald and their
contractual cash flow characteridtics, The 2004 wersion of [FRS 9 introdusces
a 'fair value !Fﬂ'ﬂuﬂh athdr cofmprehensive opme’ categary for certain debt
instruments, Financial liagbilities are classified in a similar manner o under
1AS 39, howeser there are differences in the reguirements applying to the
measurement of an entity’s own oredit risk.

+« Impalreeent: The 2014 wersion of IFRS 9 introduces an ‘enploted credit
Izgs' model for the measurement of the Engainment of financial assets, so it
I5 no konger necessary for & credit event o have cccurred before a credit
loss is recognised

= Hedge accounting: Introdueces a now hedge accounting model that is
designed to D& more dlosely aligned with how entities undertaike risk
fanagement activities when hedging financial and non-financal ik
EXPISUNes,

» Darecognition: The requirements for the derecognition of financial asses
ard liabilities are carried farwand from TAS 39,
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The comparry will adopt the finalded version of IFRS 9 from the effective date of
January 1, 2018; spply it retrospectively and recognize the cumulative effect of
indtially a-ppl'.'lrﬂthﬂ. standard a2 an adjustmient to the opening balance of retained
garnings as of lanuary 1, 2018,

The Company is continuing to analyze the impact of the changes and currently does
et congider It lkely to hawve a m&jGr impact on it adaplicn. This assessment ks
bastd on gurrently available nformation snd B subject 1o changes that may afise
wihan the Company presents @5 first financial statements as on December3l, 2018
Ehait mlmmﬁrmqf it application froem the efective dabe.

IFRS 15 Revenwe from Contracts with Customers

In May 2004, IFRS 15 was issued which established & single comprehensive model
far entities b0 UBE in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customsers,
IFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue necognition guidance including 145 18
fevenue, TAS 11 Comstruchon Comdracts and the related interpretations when it
becodmes sffactive.,

The core principle of [FRS 15 is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict
the transfer of promised goods of sorviges to customers in an amount that reflacts
the consideration to which the entity cxpects to be entitled in exchange for those
goads or Services. Specifically, the standard introduces a S-step Aporoach fo
MEVENLE PECOGNRIoN:

Sxep 1: Identify the contract{s) with a customer,

Step 2: ldentily the perfermance obligations in Ehe contract.

Srep 3: Detenming the ransaction price.

Step 4: Allscate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the
oontract.

Step 5: Recognise revenue when [of as) the enlity satisfes & performance
obligatian.

Under [FRS 15, an ently recognises when {or as) a performance obligation is
satished, i.e. when “cortrol” of the goods of services underlying the particular
performance cbligation & transferred to the customer, Far mofe prescriptive
guidante has been added in IFRS 15 to deal with spedfic scemnarics, Furthermone,
eatensive disclosunes arg reguired by 1FRS 15,

IFRS 15 may b adopted retrospectineely, b'r restateng cofmparatives and adjisting
relained farnings at the beginining of the earlest coimparative pednod, -
Alternatively, IFRS 15 may be adopiod as of the apglication date on January 1,
2018, by adjusting retained camings at the beginning of the first reporting year
[t Ciaibulative elfect approach),

The Company intends to adopt the standard using the cumulative effect appraach,
which means that the Company will recognize the cumulstive effect of iniialhy
applying this standard as an adjustment o the -uf:nrrp balance of retained
earnings of the annual reperting persod that includes the date of initial agplication,
The Company is conminuing to analyze the impact of the changes and 2 impact will
be disclosed in the first consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2018
that inchudies the efects of it application from the effective date.

Amendments to IFRS 15 Revencus from Contracts with Customers

The amendments are to clasfy three aspedts of the standard (identifying
performance obligations, prindipal versus agent considerations, and licensing) and
e provide some trard@ion relief for modified coptracts and completed contracts.

The Amendments are effective for annusl pericds beginning on or after January L,
2018,
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Amandments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
The amendments ane relabed o disclosures sbout Ehe initial applicaticn of IFRS 9.
The Amendments ane effective when [FRS 9 (2 first applied

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

The amendments ane relaled to the additional hedge accounting disclosures [and
consequential amendments) resuling from the introduction of the hedge scoaunting
chapter in IFRS %, The Amendments are effective when [FRS 9 S frst applied

IFRS 17 Insusance Contracts

IFRS 17 requires irdurance habilities 1o be measuned at a current Fulfiliment value
and provides & mone uniform measurement and presentation approach for adl
infurance contracts. Theos Fequirements are designed to achieve the goal of &
congistent, prnciple-based accounting for insurance confracts. IFRS 17 supersedes
IFRS 4 Irpurance Conbracts as of January 1, 2021,

Amendments te IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statemants and IAS 28
Investments in Associates and Jaint Ventures [2011)

The amendiments are related 19 the treatment of the sale or conbribution of assets
froem and inwestor (0 €5 assaclabe or joink venture,

The Amendments effective date deferred indefinitely and the adoption is still
parmatted.

Management anticipates that these new  standards,  interpretations  snd
armendments will be adepted in the Company’s consolidated financial statements as
ard when they are applicable and adoption of these new standards, interpretations
and amendments, cooept for IFRS 9, IFRS 15 and IFRS 16 as héghlighted in
previous paragraphs, may have no material impact on the lnancial statements of
the Comparny in the pericd af inikial application.

Management anticipates that IFRS 15 and [FRS 9 will e agopied in the Company's
financial statements for the anfcal peried beginning January 1, 3018 and that [FRS
16 will be sdopted in the Companys financial statements for the annual pericd
beginning January 1, 2019,

This item consists of the following:

December 31,
017 2016
T usp T usD
Cash on hand 1,724,079 3,424,789
Curfént acoounts 19,124, 464 6, B65, 605
Time Deposits * 607,700 20,311

21,456,243 10,314,805

& The time deposits ang hild gn monthly basis with an average rate of (1%)
Anfigally,

Annual Report 2017
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This item consizts of the following:

December 31,
017 016
Trade receivables 67,259 982 0, 545, 404
Less: Provision for doubbiul debits _ 5,562,530 4,734, 00E
61,697 443 B5 813,296
Checks. under collection * 15,838, 782 18,176,920
Employees recevable 1,561,861 2,034 405

79098086 86,013,721

The maturities of checks undar collection exterd up te the end of the year
2018,

The mowement an the provisicn for doubtful debts s a8 Toliows:

ToaF  00&
uso uso
Balance - beginning of the year &, 7 34,008 3,591,050
Addtions o the pravisien 748, TSE 1,334 328
Addetions due 1o the acguisition ® = 5.451
Written-off debts (50,787} (196,942)
Currency differences 170,562 =
Balancs - End of tha Year __5.562,539 4,734,008

This item represents additions to the accounts receivables prowision as &
result of the acquisition of Al - Masa meat processing company.

The Company adopts a policy of dealing with only credit  worthy
counterparties withi I;I!Il:ld market reputatich =0 as [0 miblgate the sk of
financial losses from defauls. The Company (akes a provision for receivables
mat collected for more than 365 days, Dee but not impaired receivables
amounted 1o USD 61,697,443 as of December 31, 2007 (USD 85,812, 396 4%
of Decemiber 31, 20156). The fqlll;l'.'lll‘rg are the details of due But not Engaired
receivables:

_ Dwcormber 31,
2017 2016
(15 uso
Up o 90 days 45 653,257 43,154,259
91 days - 180 days 10,410, B84 13,409,708
181 days - 385 days 5,633,292 9,246,429

61,607,443 65,812,396

Dué and impairesd receivables amounted to USD 5,562,539 as of December
31, 201 F (USD 4,734,008 as of ecember 31, J006).

Receivables include amounts due from The Palestinian Authority with an
amount of approximately USD 13 Millican.
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B, Invenbory - Met
This item oonsists of the following:
December 31,
2017 2016
s uso

Fintshed goods 5,369,681 5472603
Medicine 5,702,861 & 938, 734
Medical material 1,011,530 1,164,617
Consumable material 35.008 1682 22,800,611
Labaratary tools and material 19,287 843,551
Medical eguipment and machingry 3,022 853 3,723,081

Total Finished Goods 51024434 38,953,477
Raw materials 049,950 9,060, 063
Scrap and others 66 BET 863,982
Other material 3,192,918 3,100,289
Cestumed cans and spane parts * 13,655 464 7831 622

Total Inventory 77,289,673 59,808,633
Less: Provision for Slow-maving insentary 5= 1,644,635 1,586,041

Mt Invenlery 75,645,038 58,213,563
Goods in brangit 1,447 585 2,317 406
Goods at bonded * " 5,235,549

FTO092,623 66,065,747

- Goods  Include momgaged wvehicles in favar of banks in auchange of
Comimercial kA,

*E The mgwgment on the sow-moving inventory provissan is &% fallows:

2017 . o1&

uso uso
Balancg - bpginning of the year 1,506 041 1,359,193
Additions to the provision during the yaar 692,907 563,573
Additions duse to the acquistsan ® . 35,R22
written-off inventfory during the year (a4, 303) (363,347
Balance - End of the Year 1,644,635 1,596,041

. This item consists of addition o the dlaw mowing mventory as a resull of the
acquisition of Al - Mads mesl Brocessing Campany.

%, Financial Agsats for Trading
This item consists of the following:

December 31,
2017 2016
usnh LG
Listed Shared in Palesting Stock Exchange 11,3261 144,661
11,261 144,661

Annual Report 2017

'ﬁE [hm %ﬂ ﬂth- fallowing:

—acaTEber 31,
2017 2016
uso uso
Receivabile Claims &4 28,543 6,942,839
Value added tax 1,202, 296 2,097 119
Prepaid sxpenses 2,386,438 2,219,620
Refundable deposits agamst LGS, LCs
Mmgh:a?mcnh to Suppliers iﬂﬁ'ﬁ% ::M:S"g
Othier debit balances 1,571,333 1,776,504
18,842,505 13693 504
] CONS ng:
December 31,
017 a0ie
Uso LIS

Leasing confracts receivable - short berm
Leasing coniracls recencabbe - kang DErm

4,045,501 1,496,842
5,471,931 @, 7154118
9,517,833 5,213,253

l:urr-'ltﬂ

&

Minlmiuem the Hﬁml’l
Lease

Lease
. Pagmants  Payments

Pecember 31, 2007 UsD usp
Lease m:ab: due I'll'tIr:IR Ene WEAF OF IH;‘! o 4,718,102 4,181,553
Lt gge IS Gud with T ar of m -]

Lo [han & Tears - 7,048,204 5,471,931
_iXE59,306 9,653,484
Current

armount of
Minimum tha LHH'HI'I\I.II‘H

Lease EaEE
__Payments __ Paymaents

Cacamber 31, 2016 UED USD
LEase payments gue ﬂﬂ'ﬁ GO YEaF or ﬁi ad 1,935 3283 1,512,392
Lease NES. e N GRE yoar or e a

Less than © years 4 S672,866 4,715,411

7,600,149 5,227,803
December 31,

2017 2016

Ush Uso
The Total irvestment cost in the financial Masing 12,659, 306 7,609, 149
Less: Unearmed revenuss value _(3,005822) {1,381, 346)
Current amaunt of the linancial leasing contract 9,651,484 6,227 803
Liss; Provissan for unpaid beases {135.652) (15,550]
Financial lease installments die within one year  (4,045,901) {1,496,842)
Financial loasing receivables (long teom) 5471931 4,715,411
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This item consists of the following: 2017 neting that part of these lands ane mortgaged against bank credit
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December 31, faciliies,
2017 20156
usD usp -
Palesting Autamobile Company 3,342,095 1,048, 764 This item consists of the lollowing:
Unipal General Trading Company ik, 236 ar41 December 31,
3,406,331 1,146,135 2017 2018
usD usD
- Iggzmtmllﬂ af long-term chedd under oollection estend up Lo the yoar Goodvill = net ® 14,631,149 14,718,773
Trademarks = * _ 2,408,542 1,266,831

This ivem consists of the following:

Listes) Shares:

Bark of Palestine limited *

Al = Faris Nationsd company far
Investment and Exports

Palestine Electric Compary

Palestine Privabe Power Company

Technplogy Accelerator Irvestment
Company Limited

Palestine for Energy Generatian

Company § Palestine for Elactnicity
Generation Company

Islamic Finanos House

Investmant Fund:
Catalyst Private Bguity
EwrgMeny Fund

Lumias Capital

Ibkikar Furd

Hational Partfalis Securities

Mashvisar
LI Dulin

Humbar of
Zhares

5,093, 244
354,000

73,728
250,000

H00, 000
522,

December 31, MWumber of December 31,
2017 Shares 2016
Uso uso

13,497 097 4436035 11,764,460
I 8- F r 1
13,995,689 11,764,460
v 3,654, 550 1,554 S50
3,653 446 - =
275,000 250,000 275,000
HO0, 000 B0, OO0 GO0,000

T EAE - -
5,543,094 4,529,550
178,135 14,995 157,997
574,732 = 234,720
2,546,378 . 1,932,377
177,500 - 150,000
396,000 - -
100, 500 = -
200,005 500 555,008
4,472,750 3,250,102
24,011,533 _ 19,544,112

' Mpst of the shares and bonds sre mortghged againgt bank credit facilities and
Board of Directors membership.
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APIC
Uyl

17,030,791 17,085,612

Gogdwill resulted from the Company's acquistion of new shares st & value
exceeding the bock wvalue of the share in some of its subsidiary companies.
During the year anded December 31, 2016, Siniora Food Industnes Company
[subssdiary company') bought and acquined 70% from the shares of Al - Masa
midak processing company. & goodwill of USD 6,095 317 resulted from this
acguistion, making the total goodwill in Aralh Palestinian  Investment
Company (holding company) USD 14,631,149 as of December 31, 2017 after
recording An impairment provision of USD 6,940,471 from provious years.

This item represents the value of the trademarics bought from Quality Faod
Company for Sinipra Food Industries Company (Subsidiary Company]) and
cramership transfer fees.
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A%, _Bonds
Durirg January 2017, the Arab Palestinian Investment Comgary issusd bonds
with a total nominal value of USD 35 million, each bord has & nominal value of
USD 10,000, the isswance date was January 18, 2017 and the maturity date is
January 18, 2022, The coupon rate of the bonds i5 S% yeasly fiooed for the first
-[ 30 months while the coupon rate for the remaining 30 menths & & menths

LLSIENE A
=
[P P PP

ESILECE]

ILEILE

- . - - 12._Projects undsr Construstion
+| g;! %% Egigga %ii ;% i;g gw % Thig itern fepresents costs of work relabing to constructing and equipping the
g d £ 2 production facilities and sdministration offices and the rencwvation of different
240&; production lines for the subsidiary companies represended by National Aluminum
EE . . o o and Profiles Company, Siniora Food Industries Company, Unipal General Trading
58 ;s i 13 ! i;i! aia Company and Arab Palestinian Shapping Centers Company, which were not yet
& : ! i i g 5._. : * comipleted as of December 31, 2017,
The movement on the prajects under construction is as follpws:
TAETHY EETE E T T | -
58 I 13 A ﬁ‘*fﬁ th %; 1 H E i Balance - beginning of the year 3,983,948 18,714,156
gé !§"§ EEiH FE !}E.. i E mmm.mummmmt :z.aﬁéﬁ; Eﬂffﬂgiﬁ
85 ! L L i % H q g8¢ i i ; E Balance - End of the Year 1,519,878 3,983,948
) . ]
U + “iiﬁi gﬁiﬂ% % Hi:ﬁ H_E 51 g . ! The cost to complete of the abave projects ameunted to USD 2.9 millions.
% . ; t This item represents notes payable to the following companies:
3 -1 L 238 £EE i
g S8 B D BN L o
i s usD uso
ﬂ PAFHEE T I LT B it G e
: I : 53 H | j Acas Pt Shopin Conter 951,354 :,us,;;i
2 . . : : F ng Company .
RIS IR EE R LR B o s
i Thee matunties of deferred checks extend up 1o the end of the year 2018,
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LIBOR & 2.5% without paying less than 5%. The coupon rate i calcidated an
j 360 days and paid every stx months from the date of issuance. Hoting that the

issuing company has the right to amortize bonds for USD One millior and
mailtiples befone its maturity dite with a maturity price of 101% of the nominal
walise of the amortized bonds.

Ry, P

The total nominal valpe of the bonds is mofgaged against first degree
martgages which is not less tham 110% of the paminal value of the bonds, Thess
mortgapes indlude shares and lands.
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N " 21, Other Credit Balances
- - Pewrirem legrlers . Eacthn®  _ Liigriens m-mmﬂﬂhm:
~2 ‘E’ - e . = m!ll
g clE) i . 2017 2016
=] Mg By ey T ] (WG HF T E mn
© 'R; Fyresy Ty . . B i
6 & i LI e L 1 o Acorued EpEnSes 7,830,373 6,179,937
i i Bt o 54 . . pImiEN Actrued nteress 1,067,061 1,271,649
Unsarnisd fevenises 302,097 56,400
e - - Accrucd salaries and bonuses 3,027,931 2,746,637
4 Bl P b L [NE A iy [CW W, Aecrued whcaticns “lm’ TH.H.
o5 Social secunty deposits B0, 251 67,513
-,% g Forbmi Awer= wied PR ik Sales tax deposts 75,324 40,144
25 Pehes o B s o A Lo e Income tax deposits - employees BE9, 264 732,751
[N]- Wy ey A WL Qbdigaticns against after-sale maintenance 456,327 376672
Fara o bemrea b Droreemrs LY i b FELE i s
B e L el W [ ] e L] W bﬂ‘l’ll"ﬂ:ﬂ lr’-“r“l LH?,#H
(R S — . . . g Various provision 2,001,345 1,665 740
[y [T LA - m“ A47.657 . E -"‘11
v e e L . sl AB,675,318 16,540,740
o
<
5 L = T * . Thit amasil represents provisions 1o cover accumulated losses in Central and
o] i W i e . el - West Afvica  commercial agences which was not  consolidated in the
2 p— e LamLL . = . accompanying Financial statements as it is under liguidation,
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365, Bo4
580,450
478,219
2,201,382
6%, 564
2,119

9,909,246

859,049

905,913

2,746,592

2. F01, 156

w016
usp

1,699,194
216
usp

B,436,95

2017

UsD
£,249,170
3,216,201
1,163,293
1,005,006
444,491
A58 441
510,934
2674317
53,557
4. F98
11,850,220

2,780,563

—1829,589) __{818.,873)
220

-1
usp
4,508,246

Balance - End of the Year

This item consists of end-of-service indemnity provision balances in the
following companies:

Medical Supplies and Services Company
The mowement on the end-of-service indemnity provision 5 a8 fallows:

Unipal Gereral Trading Company

Mational Auminum and Profides Company

Palestine Automobile Campany

Araly Palestinian Shopping Centers Company

Arab Palestinian Investment Company (halding
COmpany)

Sky Advertising, Public Relations and Events
Company

Siniora Food Industiries Company

Arab Palestinian Storage Compary

Arab Leasing Company

Balance - beginming of the year

Additipns
Paid from the prosision
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This ibem consists of the following:
o __ December 31, S
- ) 2007 086

Minarity T Minority
Réwaluation Dwnership Compang's  Interest  Company's Inferest
Reserve Fercentage Share Share Share  Share

o

uso usD (V] ] [15-14]
Arab Palestndan Shapging
Canbirs Company ® 3,552,540 B9.7 1% 31,542, T 9,033 3145419 407,121
Hamisnal Alumetram arsd
Profiles Comnpany ** &5 5% Ti9%W 48N 444 180, 8F5 AHE ERG 180 8%9

4,222 065 4,031,353 190,672 !‘ﬂ!‘m IT!IIH

dopdias) BaArTa] PR Pl
dgrdham] namaae, o gkl o

L e R e al Lats 1
Amdfagnr s i | gainl ) damary
DD iy PR ALY ey

| B gl g | 0 AR AR B |

Arab Palgstinian Shopping Centers Company

In its meeting held on April 17, 2006, the General Assembly of the Company
approved the revaluation of the lands owned By the Compary and thel
presentation in the financial statements at fair valwe. The Bnd was revabeed
by two licensed real estate assessors at a meter price ranging from USD 480
to USD 500 per squane meber, Accordingly, the Board of Directors decided fo
sdopt 75% of the lower agaessed value, The revaluation diference s shown
in the revaluation reserse Bccount within owners' equity at USD 1,771,313,

EEBE LA
R L]
SO0 D
5 WAL T
T %
Dl 00

o drajeta)

According o the Intemational Financial Reporting Standsrds, the land has
been revalued as of December 31, 2008, as the price per meter was revalued
froem WSD 66D o USD 680, Therefore, 0% of the kower waluation was taken
and the sccounting treatment was executed acoording to TAS (8), whene the
differsnce amounting to USD 552 399 was recorded in the consolidated
itaterment of changes in ceners’ eguity. The revaluation difference as of the
date of the finsncial statements and as stated in owners' Souity amaunted b
UsSD 3,552 540, Furthermore, the Compary has reassested the value of the
land as of December 31, 20015, According to the management's opinion, the
fair walee of the land i approximate to its book walue, therefore, no
adjustrment was Dodked fod the positivie revaluation on the consobdated
financial statements,
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Hatignal Aluminum and Profiles Company

Dwring the year 2010, the General Assembly of the Comparny approved the
revaluatean of the lands cwned by the Company and their presentation in the
financial statements at fair value. The revaluation difference was stated in bhe
revalustion ressrve Bocount N Gwners' equity with am amount of USD
669,525, Furthermore, the Company restdesdsd the valee of the land a4 of
Decamber 31, 2003, According to the management’s opinion, the fair value of
the land is approximate to the book value, therefore, no adjustment was
Essoked for the posftive revaluation on the comsolidated financial statements.
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This item consists of the following:

2017 2016
This item consists of the fallowing: UsSD UsoD
2017 _2038 Salaries and wages 4,410,349 3,599,112
uso uso Compary's shire in social security & End of
Salanies and wages 13,423,734 13,507,067 sErvioe provision 552,495 422 817
Bonuses and employees benelits 3,925,965 3,732,0M hetyertising 1,611,641 2,864,133
End-of-service indemnity provisson 1,465, 544 Q67,207 Sales DONUSEs and commissons 4,070,955 3829, 126
Rent 1,297,354 L8730 Vehicles and fusl expenges 3,662, 748 2,726,352
Statisnery and prinking 183,185 206,558 Water and Electricity 29,480 24,757
Masntenance and cleaning 708,071 00, 7a8 T munsation 171, 407 137,421
Communicatsan 597,246 BA7,618 Insurance 685,084 579,033
Hespitality 455,593 427,506 Propesty, plant and equipment depreciation 695,939 589,453
Donaticns 1,244,602 538,440 Haimtenanoe 15,106 12,407
Trarsportation, travel and DUSINess (TIPS CAPENEES 1,275,088 1,347, 584 Harketing 5,031,950 4,575,310
Cansultation, legal and professional expenses 965,350 793,197 Transportation and travel B32,613 752,351
Subscriptions, governmental expendes and fees L5872 250,137 Exgiiet expenses 4499 G35 460,327
Board of Dirsctors’ aperses 342,326 254,865 ShCWIOCMS' EXpenses 121,725 101,277
Insurance 996,521 806, 002 Hospitality 17,579 7,565
Vehicles expendes 1,045, 358 S63,008 Rarit 220,657 201,582
Water and Electricity 1,136,971 994,578 Stationery 11,700 9,261
Advertising 4,128 12,710 Dehers 790,557 E03,305
Property, plant and squipmaent depreciation 2,958,571 2,655,972 23,632,521 21,495,703
Prowissan for doubtful debts | Note 7) 748,756 1,334,228
Provisian far unpaid beases 120,000 1, 304
Goods storage and security expenses 335,063 230,827 This item consists of the following:
Provision for show-moving imentary items (Mote 8) 592,907 SE3,573 17 046
Teaining 308,322 171,173 usD uso
Others 117,587 1,664,063 Dividends incomse 992,498 714,904
34,731,256 33,637,595 992,498 714,904
20, Other (Expenses] Revenus - Mot
This item congista of the following:
2017 ) 2016
USD LDy
Gains (Lossed) from the sale of property, plant and
equipment 69,991 (29,296)
Gain [losses) from Currency differences 123,371 {10,661)
Retumed fram contingent liabllties provisian 45 023 555,825
Mistallanecus eXpRREEs = mik * {1,299, 716) (984, 347)
Miscellaneous MEvenuss = net 205,988 847,837
(855,354) 379,356
® This amaunt indudes the provision talen for the liguidation of the subsidiary
cosmpary (Central and Wiest Africa Company),
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31, Income Tax - Subsidiary Companies € Income Tax expense

a- Deferred Tax Assebs The income tax shown in the consolidated statement of income
Thiz item consists of the following: represents the follawing:
2007 T L
Balance additians Amagets  Ending Balance  Dafered Tax  Daferred LD e
=
o : ' : T Accrued Income tax for the year 4,578,752 3,460,123
Acceunts Inchutes USD ush USD S VS USD
Prratiman for dinsiiiful D0 1, 364,905 1,950 11,689 4,108, 8L 51,9040 38,158 Def G Bagets for the year (334.558) (163,219)
Prtre et Ko $aee- meneng Y ' ' o ’ ' Amortized deferred tax assets 74572 210,288
ifreErtnny 1,564,741 386, 34 £23,378 1 AF7ET 80,202 133055 4418466 3,501,192
Eraj-of-parvice indemndy
prowision 7,168,567 2,161,315 580,500 8,819,282 1,880,063 939,850

= The Arab Palestinkan Investment Compamy (holding company) has performeed

Laveyusii presiiin N . - = . o L ASh de 201
12,102,213 3,011,629 1057067 14,255,973 1,823,243 1,481,059 :'D:E'::I L"‘:dmm;?;r‘ INCosd bac deparomant tp to tha year 2005 In
«  Deferred tax assets for some subsidiary companies have not been booked a3 = The fallawing schisdule shows the tan status of the subssdiary comparnies:
they are immaterild and management i uncertain on whether they will Final Settlement up
enehit from them in the future. Thess subsidiaries ar: ) o Company's Name o ta Year
Unipal General Tradeng Company 2006
Sky Advertising, Public Relstions and Events Company, Arab Palestinian Spare Sky Advertising, Publc Relations and Events Compary e
Parts and Wehides Services Comgpany, Arab Palestinian Storage Comgary, Hedical Supplies and Services Company F.itly
Jericha Katuweal and Minerad 'Water Factory Company and Central & West Africa Hational Alurinem and Profiles Company G
for Commercial Agendies and Aralb Loasing Company. Falestine Automobile Compary 2016
Arab Palestinian Storage Company 2005
The mavement on deferred tax assets is as follows: Arab Palestnian Shopping Centers Company 2016
2017 2016 Sinigra Food Industries Company (Jordan and Palestine) 2016
uso uso Jericho Matural and Mineral Water Factory Company Uiquidated
Babamoe - pginning of the year 1,461,959 1,503,028 Arab Leasing Comgany 2016
Additicns 234,658 169,219 Arab Palestinian Investment Company § Jordan (Exempied) 2015
Disposals (74,572 (210,288)
Balance- End of tha Year 1,622,245 1,461,959 In the management’s apinicn and thi tax consulant's opinion, the prowisions
recorded a5 of Decembar 31, 2017 are sufficient to astthe ths @ habilities,
b.  Incomas Tax Provision O February 9, 2002, Sinlora Fosd Industries Company - Palestine obtained
The movement on the income tax provision is as follows: from the Palestinian Irvestment Promotion Agency a full exemption fram
inpome tax for fe years commencing on January 1, 2010 up o Deoember
2017 2016 31, 2014, In sddeicn to & declared exemption of S0% of indome tax for 12
USE LSE yEArs commendng on January 1, 201% up to December 31, 2026,
Balance - beginning of the yaar 1,970,635 2,733,591 32, contingent Liabilities
Ineire tax paid (3,70L,773)  [4,223,089) At of the date of the statement of financial pesition, the Company has
Accrged Income tax 4,578,752 3.460,123 contingent liabilties as follows:
Balance - End of the Year 2,847,604 1,970,625 —Bacembar 4,
2017 2016
UsD usD
Letters of credit &,396,191 14,754 06T
Bank guarantists 24,215 963 6,589,595
Qiststanding bills 33,455 44 623
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b. The following is the geographical infarmation of the Company’'s operations:
il thee subsidiary companics are Situated in the Palestenian Autharity territories excspt thode in the below schedube!

For the Year Ended

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2007
Gaographical
~ Co ny Hame ) Location _Rewenues Expanges Assets Liabilities
S usD WSO uso
Siniora Food Industrees Company Jardan 79,190,566 72,045,965 86, 702,691 37,415,322
Arab Palestindan Investment Company § Jerdan [Exempted) Jardan 211,625 70,694 3,230,485 3,07 0%
Far the Year Ended
December 31, 2016 December 31, 2016
Geographical
Company Nama _ Location Revenues Expensas Assets Liatsilities
UsD LSO UsD S0
Sinkora Feod Industries Company Jardan 6,494 244 61,855 817 B3571.422 30072 671
Arab Palestinian Investment Company | Jordan (Exempied) Jordan 1,499,047 356,256 13,071,607 9,189,151
o+
e t]
=% .
<%
N~
o
()]
v
o
o
(]
[a's
=
=}
C
C
<
SPOOBF'TIE  LLE'GTHLTE FRAIGI el
ORS'EREGEE  GRRTSGEE SRS 0L
asn asmn
10T T EToT
T g sequiesag
LT FT ] ]
SIFPEGIT  SL6T9FLT  (SGRETLL) SLLTILS TOE'FRE'IT  LBT'RLIL dudh gy oy jpedd
(Z6T'T05°E)  (99r'BTv'e) : [T IsT9'aze’e)  (E00'EES)H WY Fusou] S5
IT9"SPr'ST FerOBR'TE (SSBR'TTL'E) EBS'089 SIS I69'0F OOZ'ITE'® WL A JAGg
EALTBBES  SLOTRLL SLRETL L - . S0IE 0 PRIRICNR J0u sasuadug (TR
PG ZET'SS BELRETRS . 15 ET9'T BOEFRLOE LEC'BOETET EI39S 0 PAYEID||E S05uddx]
TOEEST'8: SEOTERLE - PETEOE'E  POG'BLV'ES  LEE'BL0LT HiBad REGID
PROPET IRS B3 PLE GBS - BLGEEET ORTTEMEZE PETTITGA SRCHASSE PUF S35 p0 1500 (55
SEROTOC'L0D  SERTOLL'TRY - IER'SES™ PEO'DTG08S  TLO'TGT 96 SINLESAL [EEDL
asn asn asn asn asn asn
s mer 000 L10Z JMpn | esaeg apei) 1ejasnpul
FIE BQuIalag
POpUS JRSL B J0g
ssappanae of Bujpacaie LA0R50E SERUIENG § Ausdilod UL UC UoIIEUAION) ) Bulmo)a) Byl T
SRRy (RO L
o

£10¢C
9oUeW.0}I9d

|elpueul]




N~
o
(@]

Financial

)
V)
c
c
£
L
S
o
a

112

34, Lawsuits
f.__Siniora Food Industries Company

There ang lavwsuts hakd AGAinST Sniora Fogd Industrees
Company = Jordan with an amount of USD 103,078 in addition to other
lawsuits with an whidentifiable value. In the opinion of the Company™s Lawyer
and s eanagerent, no obligations shall arise against the Company
thisrefroam.

b Arab Palestinipn Shepping Conters Company

There are lwsuits held against Arab Palestinian Shopping Centérs Company
with an amount of USD 3,730,152, In the opinion of the Company's lawyer
and its mansgement, no obligations shall arise againgt the Company
thprefrom,

€. Jericho Matural and Mineral Water Factory Company

During the year 2008, the sharcholder owning 15% of the Compary's capital
“ARlga Inswrance Group® raised & lawsuit sgainst Mr. AN Al-Aqqad perscnally
and against him as the chairman of Jenche Natural and Beneral ‘Water Factory
Company and against the Arab Palestinian [nvestment Company (APIC) as a
sharcholder and & baard iember of Jefriche Matural and Mineral Fackory
Company, represénted by Mr. Tarek Omar AlL-Aggad, claiming a
compenisstion far USD 721,577, representing the plaintiffs shares in the
Campany's capital. The plasntilf abjected against the Company's managemerdt
which incurred osses as wiell a5 against its previows sale of the Company's
agsets. On December 6, 2011 a verdict was Bsued (0 dismiss the case, in
which the prosscutor sppealed the verdict in the specialty court. On October
3, 2013 & verdict wad iggued from thi court of appeal accepting its principal
and accordingly the Company's lawyer appealed this decision. The court's
dedidion was o mefuse the appeal and to refurn the cebe to the couwt of first
indtanoe. The court's decision to reject the cassation and réturn the papers to
thee Coist of First Instance to proceed the cate on 2 June 2005.The comparny
has filed a requeest to returm lawsult and the oow® will ook into the fiked
meqiscst on Ehe postponed session in Wovember 17, 2006, On 26 January
2017, the application from the lawyer was accepted angd the daim was
rginstated, The application was appealed on 27 November 2007 and the
dectsion of the Court of Appeal b6 cancel the appeal and the request of the
company and retum thi case b the sgurce to continug from where it has
been resched. The comparry filed an appeal against the decision of the Court
of Appeal before the Cowmt of Castation, Since the cassation s beld in an
audit mnd it was not held, the company i ot notified of the case wntil the
decision i made. Based on the campany’s lawyer and management’s opinion,
the detigicn cannol be predicted.
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d.__Unipal General Trading Company

There are lawsuits hekd agamst Unipal General Trading Company with an
amount af USD 17,507, In the opinien of the Company's lawyer and its
management, no obfigations shall anse against the Company therefrom.

&, Matiopal Alumingm and Profiles Company

Theere ase lawsuts keld against Mational Aluminum and Profiles Comparry with
an amount of USD 361,795, In the opinion of the Company's Wawyer and its
anapement, o ablgations shall arise against the Company therefrom.,

[ Palesting Automobile Company

There ang Lawseis held against Palestine  Autormabile Company with an
amount of USD 361,79% [n the opindon of the Company's lawyer and its
managament, ng obligations shall arise against the Company therefram.

Sk Adwerti: Public Relati | {=Tuil b2
There are kywsuits held sgainst Sky Advertising, Public Relations and
Investments Company  with an afmount of USD 18,951, In the opinion of the
Comipany’s lawyer and its management, no obSgations shall arise against the
Comipany therefrodm.

he__Arab Palestinian Storage Company

There are lawsuits held against Arab Palestinian Storage Company with an
unidentifiable valise. In the opinion of the Company's lewyer and ifs
management that a friendly settiement has been made Debween the COMpany
and the plainkiffs and an indemnity has been paid therefor nio obligations shall
arise against the Company thersfrom,

In addition, and baded on the company™s lawyer and management’s opinion,
the company will rot Bear arny lisb@ties excoding the pravision beaked.
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37, Risk Management

£ Capital Bisk Mansgement

The Company manages As capdal to ensune its ability to continue As 8 going
concern and 1o maximize the return 1o stakehclders through achieving an
cptimal balance between equity and debl, Morecwer, the Company manages
and adjusts its capital based on the changés in the econeemic comditions, The
capital Structure is revised oo & coninuous basis upon the Board of Directors
recommendaticns and the approval of the Company's General Assembly,
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#6._Related Parties Balances and Transactions
& Below ane the details of the related parties balances and fransactions:
€& i Balances:
© i
2 1 [ . December3i,
=R T Bus from related parties 217 2018
un ] USD USsD
Aggad Investment Company - majer shansholder 470,929 152,565
Siniors Food Industries Company- Algoria 245017 244 449
I T3% Taleed Midical Supplies and Services - 5.271
= i 138 Taleed Medical Supplies and Services- Gulf 4,399 .
_8 S l Medical Supplies and Serdces Company- [rag 7078 13,784
g § Contrad and West Africa for Commercial Agencies 235727 206,039
N Ya) i ; MediSery Company - 57
963,146 622,165
o 111 Due to related parties
b :
v ] Taleed Medical Supplies and Services company - Gulf BOYG T4
2 Ei Pamber in Al - Mass meal prooessing company [ United
< Arab Emirates = 851, 598 B51,598
3 i : 852,407 851,344
'<.:Q i SRR 'i i 13 o A subsidiary company for Sinlora Food Industries Campany.
188§ i ]
] ! . = Transactions:
N 5; i I | Year 2017 Nature of Transaction Amount
a E = Ulﬂil
o i 2 2 | ] i Hggad Irvestment Company - Travel and insurance expenses
% 1 Major Shanehalder paid on behalf of the Company 337,032
_;:“u 5; 2 i o Year 2016 Mature of Transaction Apgannt
(V) I "_ E - [1s]
Aggad Investment Company - Travel @and msurance capenses
Major Shareholder paid on behalf of the Company 213,148
H b.  The salaries, bonuses and cther benefits of the executive management of the
] holding comgany and its subsidiary companses amounted ta USD 3,624, 844
U ;; for the year 2017 (USD 3,614,266 for the year 2016),
: i
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The following schedul shows the ratio of Babilites to owners equity as of
December 31, 2017 and 2016

December 31,

2017 2086

Usn UsD
D b banks 36,866,413 43,154 556
Accounts payable 86,691 730 43 363 TR
Shart - term notes payabile & deferred checks 5,550,902 F467,578
Du to related parties 852,407 553 344
Short-term koan installments 26,566, (b 31,595, 704
Cther crisdit balances 18 675,328 16,540,740
Tax provision 2,847,604 1,970,625
Total Current Lisbities 147,870,447 144,945,327
End-of-gervice indemnity pravidicn 11,850,330 Q905 246
Long-term Bonds 35, 000, 0000 20,00, D00
Long-term koan instaliments 32,809,310 36,631,472
Total Liabilities 227,629,977 211,486,045
Total Owers' Bauity 128,694,672 118,297,535

Fatic of Debt ta Ownery’ Equaty 176% 179%

Liquidity risk;, aleo refermed o a5 financing risk, & the risk that the Company
will encounter dfficulty in raiging funds to meet its commitments. Morcower,
the Company manages liguidify risk through maintaining adegualie rESErves,
bank facilities and continugisly monitoning Forecast and actuad cash flows, and
maktching the maturities of financial azsets with financial Kabilities. Also, part
of the Compary's fumds 5 invested in balanoes &t banks, financial assets
awailable for trading, sccounts receivable and checks under colliection which
are readily avalable to fulfill the requiremants of Short = and medium = benm
furding &hd liquidity managemaent,

The Compary's lguidity condticn &5 of the date of the consoldated financial
statements it a4 follows:

December 31,
— 2y 0 2016
S0 usD
Current Assets 201,509,765 187,351,445
Less: Current liabilties (147,670,447) (144,545 327)

53,639,318 42,406,118

Credit risk refers to the sk that the counterparty will default on its
contractual obligations msulting in financial loss te the Company. The
Company has sdopted & polcy of degaling with only  creditearthy
counterparties and obtaining adequate guaranises, &5 appropriate, to mitigate
the rigk af fmancial loss from dofaults.

The Comgpary's fNinancial assets which consist mainly of accounts receivable,
checks under collection, and cash and cash equivalents do not represent
significant concentrations of credit risk, In addition, the debfors are spread
widkely ameng client’s Classdfications and their geographical arcas.

Marecwer, the Company masntains a strict credit policy by monitonng the
cradit Bmit for each clent individually on continuous basis,

Furthermore, the company dees not follow any policy to obfain guarantecs
mﬂm@#ﬂlﬁ receivabde, thensfore the recewables are considered mot
Quara '

Currency risk is the risk that the walus of & financial instrument will Auctuate
due o changes in fofeign exchange rabes,

The Company’s majer forsign currency Dransactions are denominated in
Jordanian Dinar, Shekel and Eure, The book values of the Company’s foreign
Manetary assets and liabeities at the date of the congolidated statement of
financial position e &g follows:

Assets Liabilities
December 31, December 31,
2017 2016 2017 2016
usD usD usp USD
Jordanisn Dinar 45,108,383 42,869,677 4,912,574 4,510,848
Shekel 86,798,647 54,319,996  BL7ST,437 60,781,375
Eurg 2,014,425 532,952 7,256,863 2,116,558
AED Dirham 19,070,965 19,349,417 4,931,482 12,486,822
Saud Riyal 5,832,210 3835233 9,499,214 428,507

Thie sensitivity analysis of the accounts cxposed to Tnu:_!gn currency exchange
risk according to currency type for the vears 2017 and 2016 ard that impacts
thir statement of incoma and owners' equity i as follows:

Annual Report 2017

1% -18%
2017 016 2017 016
UsD Uso usp
fsset
Shekel B6T7 056 543,200  (867,985) (543,200
Eura 20,144 5,320 (20,144) (5,329)
KED Dirham 194,710 153,494 {190,710) (193,404)
Saudi Rival 58,333 38,352 (58,522 {38,352)
Qthers 65,108 60,123 (65, 108) {60,122)
Liabilities
Chekel [B27,574)  (B07.B14) B27,574 607 814
Burt {72,569) [21,166) 72,569 31,186
AED Dirham {04,993)  (124.868) 04,993 124,858
Saudi Riyal (1,70 {8, 285) 1,709 8,289
Others [49,315) (41,251} 49,315 41,271

The Company’s management believes that there is ne risk associated with the
.5, Dodlar since the Jordanian Dinar is pegged to the UCS. Dollar.




@, Interest Bate Risk For the Year Ended
This risk i the rfisk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate dus December 31,
to changes in market interest rates, The Company manages its sxposure to 2017 2016
interest rate risk continuowsly and repssesses the various options such as usD uso
refinancing, renewal of the curnent podition and alternative Anancirg. Profit for the year 11,931,139 B,243.818
The sensitivity anatysis below has been determined based on the exposure A
imterest rafe risk related to bank loans, amouits due o banks, bonds and arsbar of 70,000,000 20,000, 00¢

notes payable at the consoldated finsncial statements’ date, The analysis is
prepared assumdng that the amaont of the Eability cutstanding at the date of

the consolidated financial statements has boen gutstanding for the whole USD/Share  USD/Share

WEAF. AR BCreasE OF decridEe amounting to 19% is used And represents Earnings ped share for the year relaking
management’s assessment of the probable and acceptabls change in market to thie Company's sharehalders | basic and dduted® {170 -f118
intarEsk rates:

*  The eaming per share for the year ended December 31, 2016 has be adjusted

3017 e I I017 e 2018 to 70 Million shares instead of 66 Million shares as the increase in shares
— rédulbed from the capitalization of retained earnings &5 per LAS 33,
usD uso LISD uso
Statement of incoma 1. 367,027 1,380,493 (1,367,037} (1,388,493)

The comparative figures for the year 2016 weis reclassified to be consistent
with the pear 2017,

Chare prices msk I8 the result of the cha in the fair value of shares, The
Cormpary manages this nsk by dive its portfolic inta  differest

raphical areas and ecanomic sectors. Most of the investments owned By
the Company ane not listed in financial markets. The below Senditivity analysis
refiErs bo the investments listed in Palestine Stock Baxchange.

I December 31, 2017
Effect on Effect on

Change in Statament Trwiner's
Indicator of Incoma

Indicatar uso uso uso
Falestine Stock Exchange -4 5 G563 674,855
Decombar 31, 2016

Effect on Effect on
Change in Statement Owrar's
Indicator of Income  Equity

Indicater uso LDy uso
Palestine Stock Exchange =% 5 7,200 588,223

EMIM and sowereign risks are the risks to which the Palestinian

Autharity Territoried [PATs) ane exposed fo dur o acts of invasion and
wiohence s£ fram e prevading circumstances in those bermitories,
These scts are fol with curfiy Measures and suspEnsion of work. Since
most of the operations of the subsidiary companies of the Arab Palestinian
Irvestment Company {hﬂﬂll’lﬂ company) ane conductnd in those ferrifones
thay are caposed to those ricks,

Thi subsidiary companies of Arsb Palestaniam Investrment Company (helding
company] and thes mansgements work o mitigate those risks in ofder o
redate the related financial risks through distributing the entities, stones, and
distriificn channels all ower the Paledtinian Authory Terriforses, All the
subsidiary companies are covered by insurance policies against all types of
sk
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